g GRgs&

A =
Gresham-Barlow @ School District

O

EEEEEEEEEEEE

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Board Meeting / Business

AGENDA

October 3, 2013




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
October 3, 2013

Executive Session — 6 p.m.
Personnel ORS 192.660 (2)(b)
Litigation ORS 192.660 (2)(h)
Regular Board Meeting / Business - 7 p.m.
Public Safety and Schools Building
1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. ROLL CALL

Matt O’Connell, Chair Jim Schlachter, Superintendent
Carla Piluso, Vice-Chair Jerry Jones, Chief Financial Officer
Dale Clark, Director

Dan Chriestenson, Director

Kathy Ruthruff, Director

Kent Zook, Director

Kris Howatt, Director

1. COMMUNICATION FROM THE AUDIENCE

Time has been set aside later on the agenda for Citizens” Requests of the Board. If
anyone in the audience wishes to address the board this evening, there are yellow
“Citizens” Requests of the Board” forms on the table in the back of the room; please
complete a form and give it to our board secretary, Ms. Cook.

IV. APPROVE MEETING AGENDA

V. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed below are matters considered by the board to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
member of the board or persons in the audience requests specific items be removed
from the consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda.

1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting
Minutes from Regular Work Session
Minutes from Regular Work Session
School District Financial Summary
Personnel Changes

Out-of-State Travel

MESD Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement Renewal
Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review, 2012-13

___________________________________________ September 5, 2013
September 19, 2013
September 26, 2013

A



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business
October 3, 2013

Page 2

VI. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

7. Spelling Contest Winner: Cheyenne Howatt Harris

VII. GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT

VII. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

IX. RECESS/RECONVENE (5 Minutes)

X. COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND /OR REPORTS

This portion of the board meeting agenda has been provided for the presentation of
advisory committee minutes. No action or discussion is required by the board;
however, there may be occasional reports or discussion regarding work being
completed by the committee(s).

9. District Advisory Council (DAC) Vadnais

XI. BOARD REPORTS

XII. CABINET REPORTS

XII. ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS

e Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA) (2 Minutes)
e Oregon School Employees Association (OSEA) (2 Minutes)

XIV. CITIZENS' REQUESTS OF BOARD (3 Minutes per Guest / 15 Minutes Total)

XV. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

Hiu / Harris
Drilling

10. Enrollment and Class Size Report . .
11. Gresham Arthur Academy Report to the Board

XVI. RECESS/RECONVENE (5 Minutes)

XVII. ACTION ITEMS

First Reading

12.  Acceptance of a Donation: Daimler Corporation Hiu

Second Reading

13. Capital Construction Bond Citizens Accountability Committee .
14. Dual Language / Two-Way Bilingual Program Grant Harris



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt.
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business
October 3, 2013

Page 3

XVII. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Oct. 9,2013: DAC Meeting - 7 p.m. (Note: This is a Wednesday meeting.)
Sam Barlow High School
Board Representatives: Kent Zook and Kathy Ruthruff

Oct. 17, 2013: Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Oct. 24, 2013: Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Nov. 7,2013: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

XIX. ADJOURNMENT

Note: The board may, by majority vote, take action on items listed under first reading or information.

JS:1¢:10/1/13:3:47 PM



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business

September 5, 2013

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education met in regular session on Thursday,
September 5, 2013, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW
Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon.

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. by the chair, Matt O’Connell. Other board members
in attendance were Dale Clark, Kris Howatt, Kent Zook, and Dan Chriestenson.
Kathy Ruthruff and Carla Piluso were absent.

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter . Superintendent
James Hiu_______ Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations
Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
JOTTY JOMeS e Chief Financial Officer
Randy Bryant . Executive Director of Human Resources
Anita Harris Executive Director of Elementary Education
Tim Drilling ... ... Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability
Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais_______....._... . Director of District and Community Relations

The chair led board members, administrators and all those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

MOTION 13

MOTION 14

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 5, 2013

MEETING AGENDA (7:00 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried 5 to 0 to
approve the meeting agenda as presented.

CONSENT AGENDA (7:01 p.m.)

The following items were included on the consent agenda:

1. Minutes from Previous Meetings:
a. Business Meeting
b. Board Planning Session
2. Financial Report
3. Personnel Changes
4. Obsolete/Surplus Items

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried 5 to 0 to
approve the consent agenda as presented.

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS (7:02 p.m.)

National School Public Relations Association Award of Excellence: Joe Krumm,
president of the National School Public Relations Association (NSPRA),
presented an “Award of Excellence” to the Gresham-Barlow School District for
its “Mission Statement Posters,” which went on display in schools last fall. The




posters were one of the communication tactics used in the district’s
communications plan aimed at informing staff and parents about the district’s
new mission, vision, and strategic themes.

GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT (7:08 p.m.)

Foundation reports are typically presented every-other-month. Accordingly,
there was no Foundation report this month. Athena Vadnais, however,
announced the following dates for upcoming Foundation events:

September 23 Scramble for Students Golf Tournament

February 24-27 Phone-a-Thon

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT (7:09 p.m.)

Superintendent Schlachter reported on the work underway as it relates to the
district’s six strategic themes. Prior to the start of school, district staff engaged in
professional development related to the following;:

ACTIVE instructional model

Standards identified in the Teacher and Administrator Evaluation Manual
Data teams

Formative assessments

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS)

The district also focused on community engagement activities in its long-range
facility planning, bond measure planning, and school bond communication
planning. The district is committed to public engagement as a standard practice.
The district has benefited from community input that has helped to shape the
budget, vision for the future, and proposed school bond package.

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS (7:15 p.m.)

District Advisory Council (DAC): Athena Vadnais explained that the first
2013-14 DAC meeting will be held on September 12, 2013, at Gresham High
School. According to tradition, all school board members are invited to attend
this “kick-off” meeting for the new school year.

Mrs. Vadnais also referred to a list of 2013-14 DAC meeting dates and proposed
topics that was included in the agenda packet.

BOARD REPORTS (7:16 p.m.)

Board members summarized various meetings and other activities they
participated in during the month.

CABINET REPORTS (7:20 p.m.)

Members of the superintendent’s cabinet reported on the following topics:

James Hiu Sam Barlow vs. Gresham High School girls volleyball match

and pre-game event scheduled for September 17, 2013

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 5, 2013



Anita Harris Kindergarten Counts summer school program

Teresa Ketelsen Math pilot curriculum aligned to common core

ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS (7:25 p.m.)

Rhett Hyman, a teacher at East Orient Elementary School, reported on behalf of
the Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA).

Megan Sternberg, an educational assistant at Sam Barlow High School, reported
on behalf of Oregon School Education Association (OSEA) Chapter 8 employees.

CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF THE BOARD (7:28 p.m.)

Randal and Mia Admire, 2336 SW Kendall Court, Troutdale, Oregon, expressed
concerns about the status of a student transfer request, and presented a letter to
the board. (A copy of the letter has been filed with these minutes.) The
administration explained that the district is currently processing the request.

ROSEMARY ANDERSON HIGH SCHOOL-EAST REPORT  (7:33 p.m.)

Joe McFerrin, president and chief executive officer of Portland Opportunities
Industrialization Center (POIC), and Erica Starvis, principal of Rosemary
Anderson High School-East, shared information about the high school. The
school opened last year to address the needs of at-risk youth in east Multnomah
County. Rosemary Anderson High School-East serves 130 students, 66 of which
are from the Gresham-Barlow School District.

CENTER FOR ADVANCED LEARNING (CAL) ANNUAL REPORT (7:52 p.m.)

Carol Egan, director of the Center for Advanced Learning, presented the school’s
annual report to the board. (A copy of her slide presentation has been filed with
these minutes.)

OPENING OF FUNCTIONAL SKILLS PROGRAM (8:01 p.m.)

Janell Black reported that the district is opening five functional skills special
education classrooms this year to serve students with significant disabilities. In
the past, the Multnomah Education Service District provided this program for
the district’s students.

215" CENTURY COMMUNITY LEARNING CENTERS GRANT  (8:04 p.m.)

Anita Harris reported that the school district has received a five-year
21st Century Community Learning Centers Grant. This grant, of over two
million dollars, is designed to enhance the academic portion of the Schools
Uniting Neighborhoods (SUN Programs) at six of the district’s schools. The
grant means all six schools can offer extended day English language
development and native language literacy for English language learners and
their parents. Grant funds will also be used at the middle school level to hire a
half-time Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) who will design and
implement a STEM (science, technology, engineering, and math) program that
aligns with the school day and Common Core Standards. The three elementary

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 5, 2013



MOTION 15

MOTION 16

MOTION 17

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 5, 2013

SUN schools will use grant funds to each hire a half-time teacher to implement
an after school reading program.

SCHOOL BOND MEASURE COMMUNITY FORUMS (8:07 p.m.)

Athena Vadnais reported that a series of meetings are scheduled to provide
information about the proposed school bond on the November 5, 2013, ballot.

START-UP OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EVALUATION CENTER (8:10 p.m.)

Janell Black reported that the school district is now operating an early childhood
evaluation center to identify children for special education eligibility. Last June,
the Multnomah Education Service District decided it would no longer be able to
provide this service.

RECESS/RECONVENE (8:15 p.m.)

The meeting was recessed at 8:15 p.m. and reconvened at 8:22 p.m.

NOMINATIONS FOR OSBA BOARD OF DIRECTORS (8:22 p.m.)

Kent Zook nominated Kris Howatt as a candidate for Position 18 on the OSBA
Board of Directors. The nomination was seconded by Dale Clark and carried
5 to 0. Director Howatt accepted the nomination, and the board secretary was
asked to submit the nomination form on the board’s behalf.

NOMINATIONS FOR OSBA LEGISLATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE (8:25 p.m.)

Kris Howatt nominated Kent Zook as a candidate for one of the three vacant
positions representing Multnomah County school districts on the OSBA
Legislative Policy Committee. Dale Clark seconded the nomination, and it
carried 5 to 0. Director Zook accepted the nomination.

It was discussed that Mr. Zook will decide which of the three positions he will
run for and notify the board secretary for her submission of the nomination form
on the board’s behalf.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF BUDGET COMMITTEE VACANCIES (8:26 p.m.)

Jerry Jones reviewed the recruitment, selection process, and timelines to fill the
two budget committee vacancies: Position 2 previously held by Kari Carrithers,
and Position 5, previously held by Ian Hawes.

Action to fill the vacancies will be requested at the board’s November or
December business meeting.

BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT WORKING AGREEMENTS (8:31 p.m.)

It was moved by Dan Chriestenson, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 5 to 0
to reaffirm the 2013-14 Board and Superintendent’s Working Agreements as
presented.



MOTION 18

MOTION 19

Submitted by:

Gresham-Barlow School District — Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, September 5, 2013

DISTRICT FOCUS ON EQUITY (8:34 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried 4 to 1 to direct
the superintendent to form a team to develop a plan for addressing equity issues
in the district and present the plan to the board in February 2014.
Dan Chriestenson cast the dissenting vote.

CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION BOND CITIZENS ACCOUNTABILITY
COMMITTEE (8:40 p.m.)

The board reviewed a draft Charter for the Capital Construction Bond Citizens’
Accountability Committee for first reading. Action to approve the charter will be
requested at the October 3, 2013, school board meeting.

2013-14 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO.1 (8:44 p.m.)

It was moved by Kris Howatt, seconded by Kent Zook and carried 5 to 0 to
approve Resolution 1314-04 Amendment No. 1 to the 2013-14 Budget.

ANNOUNCEMENTS (8:48 p.m.)

Sept. 12, 2013:  DAC Meeting - 7 p.m.
Gresham High School
Board Representatives: All

Sept. 19,2013:  Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Sept. 26, 2013:  Special Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Oct. 3, 2013: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m.

Linda J. Cook
Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and
Board of Directors



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session

September 19, 2013

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education held a work session on Thursday,
September 19, 2013, in the Partnership Room at the Center for Advanced Learning, 1484 NW
Civic Drive, Gresham, Oregon.

The meeting was called to order at 6:10 p.m. by the chair, Matt O’Connell. Other board
members in attendance were Dale Clark, Kris Howatt, Kent Zook, Carla Piluso, and
Dan Chriestenson. Kathy Ruthruff was absent. (Director Zook left the meeting at 7:03 p.m., and
Director Piluso left at 8:15 p.m. A quorum was present throughout the meeting.)

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter . Superintendent
James Hiu_______ Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations
Teresa Ketelsen. Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
JeTTy JOMeS Chief Financial Officer
Randy Bryant . . . Executive Director of Human Resources
Tim Drilling ... ... Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability
Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais_______...._... . Director of District and Community Relations

Guests included: Mike Hill and Daniel Lewkow of Citizens for Schools.

(Note: Guests and administrators, with the exception of Superintendent Schlachter, left the
meeting at 7:38 p.m.)

POLICY REVIEW, SECTION C, GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (6:11 p.m.)

Jerry Jones led a review of board policies in Section C, General Administration,
and one policy from Section F, Facilities, as follows:

¢sB..... Superintendent

A Qualifications and Duties of the Superintendent
¢BB... Recruitment and Appointment of the Superintendent
¢ Superintendent’s Contract

¢g6c. Evaluation of the Superintendent
CBG/CCG-AR . Administrative Standards

cc... Organizational Relations

ccbp....... Contracts — Administrative
cceGc.... Licensed Evaluation — Administrators
¢ Management Team

CFA. School-Based Decision Making

CFB/IFCA 21 Century Schools Councils

€510 Administration in the Absence of Policy

G Administrative Reports

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 19, 2013



CPA Layoff /Recall — Administrative Personnel

CPA-AR Layoff /Recall — Administrative Personnel

FEF/FEFB Construction Contracts / Bidding Awards

The recommended revisions to these policies will be considered for adoption at a
subsequent meeting.

CITIZENS FOR SCHOOLS REPORT (7:01 p.m.)

Mike Hill and Daniel Lewkow of Citizens for Schools summarized fundraising
and campaigning activities underway in support of the November bond
measure. (Refer to the handout filed with these minutes.)

(Note: Kent Zook left the meeting at 7:03 p.m.)

RECESS/RECONVENE (7:38 p.m.)

The meeting was recessed at 7:38 p.m. Administrators and guests left at this
time.

The meeting was reconvened at 7:48 p.m. with five board members (a quorum)
and the superintendent present.

BOARD ATTENDANCE AT NSBA (7:48 p.m.)

Board members discussed attendance at the National School Boards Association
(NSBA) Annual Convention, which is scheduled for April 5-7, 2014, in New
Orleans. They acknowledged that the board and district benefits from
networking and information obtained at these conventions; however, it would
not be fiscally prudent to send a delegation at this time. Consideration should be
given only when the conferences are held in a city closer to the west coast, which
is typically every-other year.

BOARD ASSIGNMENTS (7:53 p.m.)

The board reviewed a list of board assignments for 2013-14 to ensure
representation at a variety of meetings, such as the District Data Team, Audit
Involvement Team, Counselor Advisory Committee, Superintendent’s
Evaluation Committee, etc.

The list will be revisited at a subsequent work session when all board members
are present.

BOARD SELF-EVALUATION (8:10 p.m.)

Board members discussed a compilation of the 2012-13 board assessment
responses as part of its annual self-evaluation process.

(Note: Carla Piluso left the meeting at 8:15 p.m. A quorum of the board
remained.)

This discussion concluded the evaluation process for 2012-13.

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 19, 2013 Page 2



ANNOUNCEMENTS (8:21 p.m.)

Sept. 26, 2013:  Special Board Work Session - 6 p.m.
Partnership Room
Center for Advanced Learning

Sept. 30, 2013: OSBA /MESD Fall Regional Dinner Meeting — 5:30 p.m.
Oak/Spruce Room
Embassy suites Airport Hotel
Portland, Oregon

Oct. 3, 2013: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

ADJOURNMENT (8:22 p.m.)

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:22 p.m.

Submitted by:

Linda J. Cook
Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and
Board of Directors

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 19, 2013 Page 3



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session

September 26, 2013

The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education held a work session on Thursday,
September 26, 2013, in the Partnership Room at the Center for Advanced Learning, 1484 NW
Civic Drive, Gresham, Oregon.

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. by the vice-chair, Carla Piluso. Other board
members in attendance were Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Dale Clark, and Dan Chriestenson.
Matt O’Connell and Kent Zook were absent; however, a quorum of the board was present.

The following central office administrators were present:

Jim Schlachter . Superintendent
James Hiu_______ Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations
Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
JeTTy JOMeS Chief Financial Officer
Randy Bryant . Executive Director of Human Resources
Anita Harris____ Executive Director of Elementary Education
Tim Drilling ... ... Executive Director of Assessment and Accountability
Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services
Athena Vadnais_______...._... . Director of District and Community Relations

Guests included: Jeffrey G. Condit, partner of Miller Nash, LLP, and Danelle Heikkila,
Gresham High School assistant principal.

EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECESS AND RECONVENE (6:10 p.m.)

The board recessed into executive session at 6:10 p.m. to discuss litigation as
provided by ORS 192.660 (2)(h). At the conclusion of the executive session, there
was a five-minute recess, and the regular work session was reconvened at
7:01 p.m.

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD (7:01 p.m.)

Jeff Condit, partner of Miller-Nash LLP, Attorneys at Law, provided an overview
of the board’s role as a local contract review board, and the proceedings needed
to use the CM/GC (construction manager/general contractor) process for the
Gresham High School modernization project (proposed in the November 2013
bond measure).

Handouts included a sample resolution and public contracting rules adopted by
the Sherwood School District. (Copies of the handouts have been filed with these
minutes.)

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 26, 2013 Page 1



DUAL LANGUAGE/TWO-WAY BILINGUAL PROGRAM GRANT (7:12 p.m.)

Anita Harris and Danelle Heikkila provided rationale supporting the application
of a Dual Language/Two-Way Bilingual Grant. The program is designed to
assist students in becoming academically proficient in two languages. (Refer to
the executive summary and board briefing filed with these minutes.)

A recommendation to approve the grant application will be presented as a
second reading at the board’s October 3, 2013, business meeting.

POLICY REVIEW, SECTION D, FISCAL MANAGEMENT (7:47 p.m.)

Jerry Jones led a review of policies in Section D, Fiscal Management, as follows:

DA Fiscal Guidelines

DAA oo Debt Management

DB oo District Budget

DBC Budget Calendar

DBDB ... Fund Balance

DBE. .. Budget Preparation

DBEA ... Budget Committee

DBG/DBH. Budget Haring and Adoption Procedures
DBI ... Budget Amendment Procedures
DBJ o, Budget Implementation

DBK Budget Transfer Authority

These policies will be presented for second reading and adoption at a subsequent
business meeting.

The balance of policies in Section D will be discussed at the next work session.

Preceding the review of Section D, Mr. Jones revisited questions raised at the
September 19, 2013, work session pertaining to select policies in Section C,
Administration, which will also be advanced for second reading and adoption at

a future business meeting.

AUDIT INVOLVEMENT TEAM REPORT TO THE BOARD (8:14 p.m.)

The audit involvement team report to the board was tabled to a subsequent work
session when all board members can be present.

BOARD ASSIGNMENTS (8:15 p.m.)

Discussion of board assignments was tabled to the next work session when all
board members can be present to participate in the discussion.

PRINCIPAL FOR A DAY (8:16 p.m.)

Athena Vadnais announced that Carla Piluso will be a “Principal for a Day,” as a
member of the American Association of University Women (AAUW). She also
suggested that the board open Principal for a Day participation to two district
school board members annually. This year’s event will be held on October 24,
2013.

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 26, 2013 Page 2



Dale Clark expressed his interest in participating this year.

BOARD PHOTOS TO BE UPDATED (8:19 p.m.)

Carla Piluso reminded board members about the opportunity to schedule
individual photo sessions in order to update pictures that are posted on the
district's web site. Kaela Salaz of Worlds Apart Studios in Gresham is the
photographer the board identified for this purpose.

The board also asked the board’s secretary to schedule a group photo shoot at
the October or November regular business meeting.

MISCELLANEOUS (8:21 p.m.)

Jim Schlachter and James Hiu provided an update regarding bullying concerns
expressed by a student via email to the board. The administration continues to
monitor the situation, and they are working with the parents, students and
school personnel to seek resolution.

Jerry Jones reported that the architect selection committee will be meeting all day
on October 24 and 25.

ANNOUNCEMENTS (8:24 p.m.)

Sept. 30,2013:  OSBA/MESD Fall Regional Dinner Meeting — 5:30 p.m.
Oak/Spruce Room
Embassy Suites Airport Hotel
Portland, Oregon

Oct. 3, 2013: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m.
Council Chambers
Public Safety and Schools Building

ADJOURNMENT (8:25 p.m.)

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

Submitted by:

Linda J. Cook
Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and
Board of Directors

Gresham-Barlow School District - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Work Session, September 26, 2013



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones

DATE: October 3, 2013

RE: No. 2 - School

EXPLANATION:

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:
REQUESTED ACTION:

JJ:mkh:lc

District Financial Report

Benefits Team - Open Enrollment and Benefits Calendar:
Gresham-Barlow School District’s open enrollment was August 15
through September 5, 2013. The Benefit Team (human resources
and business services) was very busy streamlining services and
planning for open enrollment and the district’s employee benefits
fair. Oregon Educators Benefit Board’s (OEBB) open enrollment
process requires that every eligible employee complete the
enrollment process online.

Starting on August 15, all eligible staff were able to log in to the
OEBB website any time during open enrollment to enroll on their
own. This year, paper applications were not accepted, and
insurance will automatically be terminated for employees who did
not enroll online during the open enrollment window. The
Benefits Team was available throughout the open enrollment
period to facilitate the process for several employees who required
assistance.

Jerry Jones

Financial Report as of August 31, 2013
None

Consent agenda approval



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

As of August 31, 2013 Financial Report 2013/2014
GENERAL FUND
Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Actual Adopted Variance
Aug QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 Annual YTD Budget To Budget
Revenue
Current Taxes - - 21,200,000 1,155,000 1,015,000 23,370,000 - 23,445,472 75,472
Prior Year Taxes 113,770 218,773 237,341 105,000 145,000 706,114 113,770 680,000 (26,114)
Other Taxes / Interest 82 120 285 5,905 295 6,605 82 7,500 895
Total Taxes 113,852 218,893 21,437,626 1,265,905 1,160,295 24,082,719 113,852 24,132,972 50,253
Common School Fund - - - 615,673 603,705 1,219,378 - 994,424 (224,954)
County School Fund - - - 1,687 5,984 7,671 - 25,000 17,329
Federal Forest Fees - - - 13,282 - 13,282 - 5,000 (8,282)
State School Fund (SSF) 5,919,499 23,685,102 17,758,497 17,758,497 11,838,998 71,041,094 17,765,603 71,445,497 404,403
Other SSF Revenue 5,919,499 23,685,102 17,758,497 18,389,139 12,448,687 72,281,425 17,765,603 72,469,921 188,496
Total Formula Revenue 6,033,351 23,903,995 39,196,123 19,655,044 13,608,982 96,364,144 17,879,455 96,602,893 238,749
High Cost Disability - - - - 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 0
Prior Year SSF - - - - - - - - 0
State Restricted - - - - - - - - 0
Other State Revenue - - - - 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 0
Tuition / Transportation 676 11,502 (915) 13,863 83,953 108,403 676 115,000 6,597
Earning on Investment 7,983 21,305 54,177 44,121 32,533 152,136 13,775 175,000 22,864
Student Fees / Admissions 1,216 25,945 90,891 22,081 210,068 348,985 7,785 340,000 (8,985)
Rentals 5,575 32,783 81,158 71,749 41,413 227,103 27,892 220,000 (7,103)
Donations - 4,496 104,372 42,832 87,852 239,552 940 160,000 (79,552)
Services to other Funds 339 14,045 20,308 - 217,621 251,974 339 250,000 (1,974)
Misc. (254) 6,798 183,177 28,910 59,885 278,770 1,002 410,000 131,230
MESD Transfer - - 1,872,667 - - 1,872,667 - 1,872,667 0
Other County Funds - - 1,035 - - 1,035 - - (1,035)
Drivers' Education - 61,320 - - - 61,320 - 40,000 (21,320)
Other Federal Revenue - - - - - - - - 0
Child Care Development - - 8,363 4,207 17,801 30,371 - 33,000 2,629
Sale of Fixed Assets - - 2,500 1,246 2,090 5,836 - 5,000 (836)
Bond Proceeds - - - - - - - - 0
TRANFERS - - - - - - - - 0
Total Other Revenue 15,535 178,194 2,417,733 229,009 753,216 3,578,152 52,409 3,620,667 42,515
TOTAL REVENUE $6,048,886 $24,082,189 $41,613,856 $19,884,053 $14,862,198 | $100,442,296 $17,931,864 $100,723,560 281,264 17.8%
5,500,000 |Beginning Fund Balance
Expenditures
Licensed Salaries 24,187 2,739,222 8,100,000 8,100,000 13,400,000 32,339,222 39,222 32,607,948 268,726
Support Staff Salaries 282,139 1,337,446 2,340,000 2,340,000 3,560,000 9,577,446 557,446 10,053,254 475,808
Admin Salaries 391,741 1,187,270 1,185,000 1,185,000 1,185,000 4,742,270 792,270 4,695,163 (47,107)
Confidential Salaries 46,916 139,905 141,000 141,000 141,000 562,905 92,905 562,605 (300)
Subs' / Temp Salaries 86,908 318,812 900,010 749,489 1,184,681 3,152,992 116,714 3,350,353 197,361
Total Salaries 831,891 5,722,655 12,666,010 12,515,489 19,470,681 50,374,835 1,598,557 51,269,323 894,488
PERS 160,731 1,206,835 2,700,000 2,700,000 4,150,000 10,756,835 306,835 12,079,796 1,322,961
FICA 62,730 436,386 948,000 948,000 1,475,000 3,807,386 120,386 3,901,131 93,745
Insurance 150,105 1,296,472 3,000,000 3,000,000 4,800,000 12,096,472 296,472 12,101,340 4,868
Other Benefits 46,083 269,199 420,000 360,000 500,000 1,549,199 129,199 1,581,575 32,376
Total Benefits 419,649 3,208,892 7,068,000 7,008,000 10,925,000 28,209,892 852,892 29,663,842 1,453,950
Purchased Services 482,594 1,392,305 3,000,000 3,800,000 3,900,000 12,092,305 792,305 12,112,303 19,998
Charter School Payments 540,075 1,906,239 1,620,000 1,620,000 1,130,000 6,276,239 1,366,239 5,109,223 (1,167,016)
Supplies & Materials 143,967 425,895 530,000 440,000 430,000 1,825,895 225,895 2,159,868 333,973
Capital Outlay 29,441 59,441 47,000 40,000 20,000 166,441 29,441 163,867 (2,574)
Other Objects 12,224 565,680 30,000 55,500 63,000 714,180 550,680 723,102 8,922
Transfers - 550,000 - - - 550,000 550,000 550,000 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $2,459,841 $13,831,107 $24,961,010 $25,478,989 $35,938,681 | $100,209,787 $5,966,009 $101,751,528 $2,699,835 5.9%
Reserves - Contingency/Unappropriated Ending Balance 4,472,032
Beginning Cash Balance $6,530,804 $0
Net Change in Fund Balance $232,509 $106,223,560 Budget
Ending Cash Balance $6,763,313
6.7% (Percentage of Expenditures Projections)

10-03-13

Board - Report 2013-14 - Oct

Expenditure Summary

Salaries 1,598,557 26.8%
Benefits 852,892 14.3%
Purchased Serv 2,158,544  36.2%
Supplies 225,895 3.8%
Capital Outlay 29,441 0.5%
Other Objects 550,680 9.2%
Transfers 550,000 9.2%

$ 5,966,009 100.0%




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Randy Bryant
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires
EXPLANATION: The following resignations have been accepted, or terminations

processed:

Licensed Resignations/Terminations

Shirley Miller, 8" Grade Language Arts Teacher, West Orient
Middle School. Notice of resignation received August 30, 2013,
effective with her last day of work on June 14, 2013.

Michael Webb, Resource & Methods Teacher, Dexter McCarty
Middle School. Notice of resignation received August 22, 2013,
effective with his last day of work on June 14, 2013.

Classified Resignations/Terminations

David Andersen, .50 FTE Special Education Device & Equipment
Assistant, .50 FTE Assistive Technology Education Assistant,
Student Support Services.  Notice of resignation received
September 3, 2013, effective with his last day of work on
September 6, 2013.

In compliance with district policy, the following personnel are
being recommended for employment:

Licensed New Hires

Kyla Cadieux, .50 FTE, Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Gresham
High School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Kathleen Allen
who has been granted a partial leave of absence.

Tracy Early, TOSA/SUN Reading Specialist, Hall Elementary
School. Probationary Contract. Replacing Kimberly Blair who has
retired.



Board of Directors

Re: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires

October 3, 2013
Page 2

Jennifer Fryback, % Blend, Hall Elementary School. Temporary
Contract. Replacing Ami Shannon who has been reassigned.

Matthew Grable, Resource & Methods Teacher, Dexter McCarty
Middle School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Michael Webb
who has resigned.

Denise Grave, Speech Language Pathologist, Student Support
Services. Probationary Contract. Replacing Emily Stillwell who
has resigned.

Jonathan Jones, ELL Teacher, Kelly Creek Elementary School.
Temporary Contract. Replacing Michelle Mercher who has been
reassigned.

leffrey Latter, .83 FTE, 8" Grade Language Arts Teacher, West
Orient Middle School. Replacing Shirley Miller who has resigned.

Solveig Nyberg, .50 FTE Choir Teacher, Sam Barlow High School.
Probationary Contract. Replacing Amber Schroeder who has been
reassigned.

Sally Rimmer, .83 FTE, 7" Grade Language Arts, Clear Creek
Middle School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Dan Myers who
has resigned.

Amanda Schick, .83 FTE ELL and English Teacher, Sam Barlow
High School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Wendy Herrick
who has been approved for a partial leave of absence and
Matt Lacy who has resigned.

Melissa Swan, .50 German and English Teacher, Sam Barlow High
School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Anne Auxier who has
retired and Matthew Lacy who has resigned.

Vicky Vasey, Resource & Methods Teacher, Highland Elementary
School. Temporary Contract. Replacing Rebecca Soltis who has
resigned.

Matthew Wallace, Fourth Grade Teacher, East Gresham
Elementary School. Probationary Contract. Replacing Landon
Ball who has resigned.




Board of Directors

Re: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires

October 3, 2013
Page 3

Classified New Hires

Everett Barr-Hertel, Educational Assistant 2, Highland Elementary
School. Replacing Melody Akers who retired.

Kelli Blubaugh, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, East
Gresham Grade School. Replacing Denise Strot who retired.

Tiffany Braman, Educational Assistant 2 / Health Assistant,
Powell Valley Elementary School. Replacing Marcella Sue Korwin
who retired.

Michelle Davis, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, Highland
Elementary School.  Replacing Valyri Anderson who was
reassigned.

Bridget Dishman, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, Kelly
Creek Elementary School. Replacing Nadia Bailey who was
reassigned due to the retirement of Kathleen Bloodgood.

Debra Hukriede, Educational Assistant 3 — Title I, East Gresham
Grade School. Replacing Cynthia Strandberg who resigned.

Kenzi Kahl, Educational Assistant 2 / Health Assistant, East
Orient Elementary School. Replacing Jenifer Little who resigned.

Maria Martinez, Educational Assistant 3 — ELL, East Gresham
Elementary School. Replacing Ruth Mercado who was
reassigned.

[ohn Mayner, Educational Assistant 2, West Gresham Elementary
School. Replacing Melanie Johnsen who resigned.

Amanda Neighbors, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, West
Gresham Elementary School. Replacing Nicole Thompson who
resigned.

Daniel Rhamey, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, Dexter
McCarty Middle School. New position.

Vanessa Rigaud, Educational Assistant 3 — ELL, Sam Barlow High
School and West Orient Middle School. Replacing Amy Fonken
who was reassigned.

Carissa Strobel, Educational Assistant 3 — Media, West Orient
Middle School. Replacing Shelley Thompson who was reassigned
due to the resignation of Vickie Allen.




Board of Directors

Re: No. 3 - Personnel Changes: Resignations/Terminations and New Hires

October 3, 2013
Page 4

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

RHB:pd:lc

Rita Joanne Treet, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, Hall
Elementary School. New position.

Elena Herrera Underwood, Educational Assistant — Special Ed,
Powell Valley Elementary School. New position.

Jennifer Warfield, Educational Assistant 4 — Special Ed, Gordon
Russell Middle School. Replacing Traci Reed who was reassigned.

Lacinda Weems, Educational Assistant 4 - Special Ed, North
Gresham Elementary School. Replacing Kara Spinella who is on a
one-year leave of absence.

Solen Wilebski, School Community Liaison, Gresham High
School. Replacing Gustavo Godoy Navarro who was reassigned.

Randy Bryant

None
None

Consent agenda approval



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM.: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 4 - Out-of-State Travel
EXPLANATION: The administration seeks approval for the following out-of-state
travel plans:
School Destination Date(s) Group Funds
Gresh Columbia Univ. No
H;els1 AM | giudent Press March 17-23, Areus District
Scl%ool Assoc. 2014 & Funds
New York, NY Required

Purpose: Participate in a national convention where we can attend
workshops hosted by professionals

Gresham | Band Festival - March 7-9 Wind gﬁgtﬂct
High Wind Symphony 2014 Symphony | Funds
School Seattle, WA Required

Purpose: Perform in a band festival at George Fox University, have a
clinic at Pacific Lutheran University, learn about different aspects of music
in Seattle through Experience Music Project Museum and local musicians.

PRESENTER: James Hiu
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the out-of-state
travel requests listed above.

REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval

JH:pkh:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter

DATE: October 3, 2013

RE: No. 5 - Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement

EXPLANATION: In 2008 the Multnomah County school districts entered into an

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIAL:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

dc

Intergovernmental Agreement for the purpose of providing
emergency assistance to each other if needed. The agreement was
last updated in June 2012.

The agreement will provide participating districts with emergency
assistance in the form of supplemental personnel, equipment,
materials, or other support. The borrowing district will receive
support at the lender’s discretion. Cost to the borrowing district
generally occurs after the first eight hours of use for personnel or
equipment and at replacement cost for supplies and materials.
Resources “borrowed” with reimbursement and terms of
exchange are defined in Articles X through XII.

The point of contact for this agreement would be the director of
emergency management to be determined by each district. This
agreement will be effective upon execution by two or more
participating districts. A participating district may opt to
terminate the agreement by providing written notice to each of the
participating districts.

Jim Schlachter

Intergovernmental Agreement — Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
for Emergency Assistance 2013-2014

The administration recommends continuation of the
Intergovernmental Agreement for Emergency Assistance for
2013-2014 as presented.

Consent agenda approval



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance
2013-2014

This OMNIBUS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by the undersigned Districts
(hereafter referred to as “Participating Districts™) to enable them to provide Emergency
assistance to each other during times of emergency.

WHEREAS, the Participating Districts have expressed mutual interest in
the establishment of an Omnibus Agreement to facilitate and
encourage mutual aid and assistance among the Participating
Districts; and

WHEREAS, in the event of an emergency a Participating District which
has executed this Omnibus Agreement may need emergency
assistance in the form of supplemental personnel, equipment,
materials or other support; and

WHEREAS, each Participating District may own and maintain supplies
and equipment and employ trained personnel for a variety of public
services and is willing, under certain conditions, to lend its
supplies, equipment and supplemental personnel to other
Participating Districts in the event of an emergency; and

WHEREAS, the proximity of the Participating Districts to each other
enables them to provide emergency assistance to each other.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and
agreements hereinafter set forth, each undersigned Participating
District agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I - APPLICABILITY

This Omnibus Agreement is available for execution to all Participating Districts. Execution of
the Omnibus Agreement by a Participating District will occur when the Participating District
signs an identical version of this Omnibus Agreement.

ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS

A. “Assistance Costs” mean any direct equipment costs and labor costs that extend beyond
the first eight (8) hours (usual and customary costs) incurred by the Lender in providing
any asset requested. The Lender is expected to absorb the total labor costs for assistance
which takes less than eight (8) hours, and is expected to absorb the first eight (8) hours of
labor costs in an extended event. The labor costs, including overtime costs, will be
absorbed by the Lender, until the Borrower uses borrowed personnel more than eight (8)
hours, at which time the labor costs will be incurred by the borrowing Participating
District. For this Omnibus Agreement, the time begins when the lending agency makes
personnel available. Further agreements regarding costs appear in Article XII, Loans of
Personnel.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement

Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013
Page 2 of 21

. "Borrower" means a Participating District which has adopted, signed and subscribes to
this Omnibus Agreement and has made a request for emergency assistance and has
received commitment(s) to deliver emergency assistance pursuant to the terms of this
Omnibus Agreement.

. "Contact Person(s)" means the person or persons designated by each Participating
District to request emergency assistance from or grant emergency assistance to another
Participating District pursuant to the terms of this Omnibus Agreement.

. "Participating District" means an entire school district or entire education service district.
Though the point of contact for this agreement is the Director of Emergency
Management, all functions or departments of Participating Districts are implicated in this
Omnibus Agreement, as emergency assistance could be provided by any function or
department including, but not limited to instruction services, special education services,
health services, social services, business services, transportation, information services,
and craft or tradesmen.

. "Director of Emergency Management" means the person appointed as the emergency
program manager by the superintendent or governing board of a Participating District.

. "Emergency" includes, but is not limited to, a human-caused or natural event or
circumstances within the area of operation of any Participating District causing or
threatening loss of life, damage to the environment, injury to person or property, human
suffering or financial loss, such as: employee strike or work stoppage, fire, explosion,
flood, severe weather, drought, earthquake, volcanic activity, spills or releases of
hazardous materials, contamination, utility or transportation emergencies, disease,
infestation, civil disturbance, riots, acts of terrorism or sabotage, use of weapons of mass
destruction; said event being or is likely to be beyond the capacity of any affected
Participating District or Participating Districts, in terms of personnel, equipment and
facilities, thereby requiring emergency assistance.

. "Emergency Assistance" means employees, services, equipment, materials, or supplies
offered during an emergency by the Lender and accepted by the Borrower to assist in
maintaining or restoring normal Participating District services when such service has
been disrupted by acts of the elements, equipment malfunctions, accidents,
terrorism/sabotage and other occurrences where emergency assistance from other
Participating Districts is necessary or advisable, as determined by the requesting
Participating District.

. "Emergency Contact Information Form" is the form to be submitted to the Directors of
Emergency Management by each Participating District that lists names, addresses, and 24
hour contact phone numbers of the Contact Person(s) of each Participating District.



L

K.

Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 3 of 21

"Lender" means a Participating District which signed and adopted this Omnibus
Agreement and has agreed to deliver emergency assistance to another Participating
District pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Omnibus Agreement.

"Omnibus Agreement" means identical Participating District agreements executed in
counterparts which bind the executing Participating District to its terms and conditions to
provide and receive emergency assistance. The terms and conditions of the Omnibus
Agreements are all identical and the execution of an Omnibus Agreement by a
Participating District binds that Participating District to all other Participating Districts
which have executed an identical Omnibus Agreement in counterparts. To be effective
for purposes of receiving emergency assistance, this Omnibus Agreement must be fully
executed and received by the Subscribing Participating Districts’ superintendents.

"Termination Date" is the date upon which this Agreement terminates pursuant to Article.
V.

ARTICLE IIl - PARTICIPATION

Participation in this Omnibus Agreement is purely voluntary.

ARTICLE IV - ROLES OF DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OF

PARTICIPATING DISTRICTS

Participating Districts agree that individual Directors of Emergency Management or designee
can serve as the representative of the Participating District in any meeting to agree on
interpretation of the language or implementation of this Omnibus Agreement.

The Director of Emergency Management of each Participating District shall, to the extent
reasonably possible:

A.

B.

Participate in any meetings convened which are related to this Omnibus Agreement.

Obtain and communicate to each Participating District the discussion items and decisions
of the meeting.

Maintain a manual containing the master copy of this Omnibus Agreement, any
Amendments thereto, and a list of Participating Districts.

Notify all Participating Districts whenever a new Participating District executes the
Omnibus Agreement.

Provide each Participating District with a copy of the signature page of newly executed
Omnibus Agreement(s).



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 4 of 21

F. Provide each Participating District with copies of the Emergency Contact Information
Forms provided by other Participating Districts.

G. Notify all Participating Districts whenever a Participating District terminates its
participation in this Omnibus Agreement.

H. Maintain and distribute checklists to assist Participating Districts in the planning details
associated with being a Borrower or Lender under the terms of this Omnibus Agreement.

ARTICLE V - TERMS AND TERMINATION

A. This Omnibus Agreement is effective upon execution by two or more Participating
Districts.

B. A Participating District opting to terminate this Omnibus Agreement shall provide
written termination notification to the Director of Emergency Management for each
Participating District. Notice of termination becomes effective upon receipt by the
Directors of Emergency Management. Any terminating Participating District shall remain
liable for all obligations incurred during its period of participation, until the obligation is
satisfied.

ARTICLE VI - PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND ASSISTANCE

Borrower shall pay the Lender for all valid and invoiced assistance costs within sixty (60) days
of receipt of the Lender’s invoice, for all of the emergency assistance services provided by the
Lender. Lender, in its sole discretion, may elect to extend the repayment deadline, upon the
written request of Borrower. In the event the Lender provides equipment, supplies or parts, the
Lender shall have the option to accept payment of cash or in kind for the equipment, supplies or
parts supplied.

ARTICLE VII - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Lender shall be and operate as an independent contractor of Borrower in the performance of any
emergency assistance. Employees of Lender shall at all times while performing emergency
assistance continue to be employees of Lender and shall not be deemed employees of Borrower
for any purpose. Wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of Lender shall
remain applicable to all of its employees who perform emergency assistance. Lender shall be
solely responsible for payment of its employees’ wages, any required payroll taxes and any
benefits or other compensation. Borrower shall not be responsible for paying any wages,
benefits, taxes, or other compensation directly to the Lender’s employees. The costs associated
with borrowed personnel are subject to reimbursement process outlined in Article XII. In no
event shall Lender or its officers, employees, agents, or representatives be authorized (or
represent that they are authorized) to make any representation, enter into any agreement, waive
any right or incur any obligation in the name of, on behalf of or as agent for Borrower under or
by virtue of this Omnibus Agreement.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 5 of 21

ARTICLE VIII - REQUESTS FOR EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE

Requests for emergency assistance shall be directed to the designated contact person(s) on the
contact list provided by the Participating Districts. The extent to which the Lender provides any
emergency assistance shall be at the Lender’s sole discretion. In the event the emergency
impacts a large geographical area that activates either federal or state emergency laws, this
Omnibus Agreement shall remain in effect until or unless this Omnibus Agreement conflicts
with such federal and state Laws.

ARTICLE IX - GENERAL NATURE OF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE

Emergency assistance will be in the form of resources, including equipment, supplies, and
personnel, or the direct provision of services. The execution of the Omnibus Agreement shall not
create any duty to respond on the part of any Participating District. A Participating District shall
not be held liable for failing to provide emergency assistance. A Participating District has the
absolute discretion to decline to provide any requested emergency assistance and to withdraw
resources it has provided at any time without incurring any liability. Resources are “borrowed”
with reimbursement and terms of exchange varying with the type of resource as defined in
Atticles X through XII. The Participating Districts recognize that time is critical during an
emergency and diligent efforts will be made to respond to a request for resources as rapidly as
possible, including any notification(s) that requested resources are not available.

ARTICLE X - LOANS OF EQUIPMENT

At the sole discretion of the Lender, equipment may be made available upon request of a
Participating District. The first eight (8) hours of use will be without cost to the Borrower, after
which use of equipment, including construction equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps and motors,
shall be at the Lender’s actual costs or their current equipment rate; or if no written rates have
been established, at the hourly operating costs set forth in an industry standard publication as
selected by the Directors of Emergency Management, or as mutually agreed between Borrower
and Lender. Equipment and tool loans are subject to the following conditions:

1. At the option of the Lender, loaned equipment may be loaned with an
operator. See Article XII for terms and conditions applicable to use of
borrowed personnel.

2. Loaned equipment shall be returned to the Lender upon release by the
Borrower, or imnmediately upon the Borrower’s receipt of an oral or written
notice from the Lender for the return of the equipment. When notified to
return equipment to a Lender, the Borrower shall make every effort to return
the equipment to the Lender’s possession within twenty-four (24) hours
following notification.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 6 of 21

3. Borrower shall, at its own expense, supply all fuel, lubrication and necessary
maintenance for loaned equipment. The Borrower will take proper precaution
in its operation, storage and maintenance of Lender’s equipment. Lender shall
endeavor to provide equipment in good working order. All equipment is
provided “as is”, with no representations or warranties as to its fitness for
particular purpose, or general condition.

4. Lender’s costs related to the transportation, handling, and loading/unloading
of equipment shall be chargeable to the Borrower. Lender shall provide
copies of invoices for these charges when provided by outside sources and
shall provide hourly accounting of charges for Lender’s employees who
perform these services.

5. Without prejudice to a Lender’s right to indemnification under Article XIV, in
the event loaned equipment is lost or damaged while in the custody and/or use
of the Borrower, or while being returned by Borrower to the Lender, Borrower
shall reimburse the Lender for the reasonable cost of repairing the damaged
equipment. If the equipment cannot be repaired within a time period indicated
by the Lender, then Borrower shall reimburse Lender for the cost of replacing
damaged equipment with equipment which is of equal condition and
capability. Any determinations of what constitutes “equal condition and
capability” shall be at the discretion of the Lender. If Lender must lease or
rent a piece of equipment while the Lender’s equipment is being repaired or
replaced, Borrower shall reimburse Lender for such costs. Borrower shall
have the right of subrogation for all claims against persons other than parties
to this Omnibus Agreement who may be responsible in whole or in part for
damage to the equipment. Borrower shall not be liable for damage caused by
the sole negligence of Lender’s Operators.

ARTICLE XI - EXHANGE OF MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES

Borrower shall reimburse Lender in kind or at Lender’s actual replacement cost, plus handling
charges, for use of partially consumed or non-returnable materials and supplies, as mutually
agreed between Borrower and Lender. Other reusable materials and supplies which are returned
(unused) to Lender in clean, damage-free condition shall not be charged to the Borrower and no
rental fee will be charged. Lender shall determine whether items returned are “clean and
damage-free” and items shall be treated as partially consumed or non-returnable materials and
supplies if an item is found to be damaged.

ARTICLE XII - LOANS OF PERSONNEL
Lender may, at its option, loan to Borrower employees who are willing to provide various

services. These employees will be loaned without cost to the Borrower for the first eight (8)
hours of service, after which they will be loaned at Borrower’s expense equal to Lender’s full



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 7 of 21

costs, including each employee’s salary or hourly wages, call back or overtime costs, benefits
and overhead, and consistent with Lender’s collective bargaining or individual contracts, if any,
or other conditions of employment. Costs to feed and house loaned personnel, if necessary, shall
be chargeable to and paid by the Borrower. The Borrower is responsible for assuring such
arrangements as may be necessary to provide for the safety, housing, meals, and transportation to
and from job sites/housing sites (if necessary) for loaned personnel. The Participating Districts’
Directors of Emergency Management or their designees shall develop planning details associated
with being a Borrower or Lender under the terms of this Omnibus Agreement.

Lender personnel providing emergency assistance shall be under the temporary direction of the
emergency management authorities of the Borrower. Lender shall not be liable for cessation or
slowdown of work if Lender’s employees decline or are reluctant to perform any assigned tasks
if employees judge a task to be unsafe. A request for loaned personnel to direct the activities of
others during a particular response operation does not relieve the Borrower of any responsibility
or create any liability on the part of the Lender for decisions and/or consequences of the response
operation. When supervisory personne! are loaned, the Lender may make stipulations on the
scope and duties of supervisory personnel loaned.

ARTICLE XIII - RECORD KEEPING

Time sheets and/or daily logs showing hours worked and equipment and materials used or
provided by the Lender will be recorded on a shift by shift basis by the Lender and/or the loaned
employee(s) and will be provided to the Borrower as needed. If no personnel are loaned, the
Lender will provide shipping records for materials and equipment, and the Borrower is
responsible for any required documentation of use of material and equipment for any available
state or federal reimbursement. Under all circumstances, the Borrower remains responsible for
ensuring that the amount and quality of all documentation is adequate to enable disaster
reimbursement if available.

ARTICLE XIV - INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

A. NOTTFICATION AND PARTICIPATION. Participating Districts which execute the
Omnibus Agreement are expected to:

1. Ensure that each Participating District timely receives the most current
emergency contact information.

2. Participate in scheduled meetings to coordinate operational and
implementation issues.

B. INDEMNIFICATION. Except as provided in section C., to the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, the Borrower releases and shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend each
Lender, its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all costs, including costs
of defense, claims, judgments or awards of damages asserted or arising directly or indirectly



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 8 of 21

from, on account of, or in connection with providing emergency assistance to the Borrower,
whether arising before, during or after performance of the emergency assistance and whether
suffered by any of the Participating Districts or any person or entity.

C. ACTIVITIES IN BAD FAITH OR BEYOND SCOPE. Any Participating District shall not
be required under this Omnibus Agreement to indemnify, hold harmless and defend any other
Participating District from any claim, loss, harm, liability, damage, cost or expense caused by
or resulting from the activities of any Participating District’s officers, employees, or agents
who are acting negligent, in bad faith or performing activities beyond the scope of their
duties.

D. LIABILITY FOR PARTICIPATION. In the event of any liability, claim, demand, action
or proceeding, of whatever kind or nature arising out of rendering of emergency assistance
through this Omnibus Agreement, the Borrower agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and
defend, to the fullest extent of the law, each signatory to this Omnibus Agreement, whose
only involvement in the transaction or occurrence which is the subject of such claim, action,
demand, or other proceeding, is the execution and approval of this Omnibus Agreement.

E. DELAY/FAILURE TO RESPOND. No Participating District shall be liable to another
Participating District for, or be considered in breach of or default under this Omnibus
Agreement due to any delay in or failure to perform any obligation under this Omnibus
Agreement, except to make payment as specified in this Omnibus Agreement.

F. PARTICIPATING DISTRICT LITIGATION PROCEDURES. Each Participating District
secking to be released, indemnified, held harmless or defended under this Article with
respect to any claim shall promptly notify the Borrower of such claim and shall not settle
such claim without prior consent of Borrower, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The Participating District shall have the right to participate in the defense of said
claim to the extent of its own interest. A Participating District’s personnel shall cooperate
and participate in legal proceedings if so requested by the Borrower, and/or required by a
court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE XVI - WORKERS’ COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE CLAIMS

Lender’s employees, officers or agents, made available to Borrower, shall remain Lender's
employees, officers or agents while engaged in carrying out duties, functions or activities
pursuant to this Omnibus Agreement, and each Participating District shall remain fully
responsible as employer for all taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, wages, withholdings,
workers’ compensation and other direct and indirect compensation, benefits, and related
obligations with respect to its own employees. Likewise, each Participating District shall
provide Workers’ Compensation in compliance with statutory requirements of the State of
Oregon.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014

September 13, 2013
Page 9 of 21

ARTICLE XVII - MODIFICATIONS

No provisions of this Omnibus Agreement may be modified, altered, or rescinded by any
Participating District without 2/3 concurrence of the signatory Participating Districts.
Modifications to this Omnibus Agreement must be in writing and will become effective upon
approval of the modification by a 2/3 affirmative vote of the signatory Participating Districts.
Modifications must be signed by an authorized representative of each Participating District.

ARTICLE XVIII - NON EXCLUSIVENESS AND PRIOR AGREEMENTS

This Omnibus Agreement is not intended to be exclusive among the Participating Districts. Any
Participating District may enter into separate emergency assistance agreements with any other
entity. No separate agreement shall terminate any responsibility under the Omnibus Agreement.
To the extent that prior agreements between Participating Districts are inconsistent with this
Agreement, prior agreements for emergency assistance between the Participating Districts will
supersede this Omnibus Agreement, until the inconsistencies of the prior agreements are
reconciled by the Participating Districts.

ARTICLE XIX - GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY

This Omnibus Agreement is subject to laws, rules, regulations, orders, and other requirements,
now or as amended, of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the emergencies
covered by this Omnibus Agreement.

ARTICLE XX — NO DEDICATION OF FACILITIES

No undertaking by a Participating District to another Participating District under any provision
of this Omnibus Agreement shall constitute a dedication of the facilities or assets of such
Participating District, or any portion thereof, to the public or to the other Participating District.
Nothing in this Omnibus Agreement shall be construed to give a Participating District any right
of ownership, possession, use or control of the facilities or assets of any other Participating
District.

ARTICLE XXI — NO PARTNERSHIP

This Omnibus Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint
venture or partnership among the signatory Participating Districts or to impose any partnership
obligation or liability upon any Participating District. Further, no Participating District shall have
any undertaking for or on behalf of, or to act or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise
bind any other Participating District.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014

September 13, 2013
Page 10 of 21

ARTICLE XXTI - NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

Nothing in this Omnibus Agreement shall be construed to create any rights in or duties to any
third party, nor any liability to or standard of care in reference to any third party. This Omnibus
Agreement shall not confer any right or remedy upon any person other than the Participating
Districts. This Omnibus Agreement shall not release or discharge any obligation or liability of
any third party to any Participating District.

ARTICLE XXTII - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Omnibus Agreement constitutes the entire agreement, though prior agreements of the
Participating Districts may take precedence over certain concepts outlined in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXIV — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Omnibus Agreement is not transferable or assignable, in whole or in part, and any
Participating District may terminate its participation in this Omnibus Agreement subject to
Article V.

ARTICLE XXV - GOVERNING LAW

This Omnibus Agreement shall be interpreted, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Oregon.

ARTICLE XXVI - VENUE

Any action which may rise out of this Omnibus Agreement shall be brought in the county where
the emergency occurred.

ARTICLE XXVII - TORT CLAIMS

It is not the intention of this Omnibus Agreement to remove from any of the Participating
Districts any protection provided by any applicable Tort Claims Act. However, between
Borrower and Lender, the Borrower retains full liability to the Lender for any claims brought
against the Lender as described in other provisions of this Omnibus Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVHI - WAIVER OF RIGHTS

Any waiver at any time by any Participating District of its rights with respect to a default under
this Omnibus Agreement, or with respect to any other matter arising in connection with this
Omnibus Agreement, shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver with respect to any subsequent
default or other matter arising in connection with this Omnibus Agreement. Any delay in
asserting or enforcing any right, except those related to the statutes of limitations, shall not
constitute or be deemed a waiver.



Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Page 11 of 21

ARTICLE XXIX - INVALID PROVISION

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this Omnibus Agreement shall be
construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted.

ARTICLE XXX - NOTICES

Any notice, demand, information, report, or item otherwise required, authorized, or provided for
in this Omnibus Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed properly given if (i)
delivered personally, (ii) transmitted and received by telephone facsimile device and confirmed
by telephone, or (iii) sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, to the Directors of Emergency
Management for all Participating Districts at the address designated in each Participating
District’s Emergency Contact Information Form.



Intergovernmental Agreement
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Pages 12 - 14

Pages 12 — 14 were omitted intentionally.
They are signature pages for other districts / partners
of this Intergovernmental Agreement:lc



SIGNATURE PAGE:

Intergovernmental Agreement -
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014

September 13, 2013
Page 15 of 21

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT - NO. 10J
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, School District No. 10J, Multnomah County Oregon (Gresham-
Barlow) hereto has caused this Omnibus Agreement for emergency assistance to be
executed by its duly authorized representatives as of the date of their signatures.

Dated this day of

By:

, 2013

Jim Schlachter, Superintendent

By:

Director of Emergency Management

REVIEWED:

By:

Attorney

o de de d e

ADOPTED BY: GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Resolution Number:

Date:

khkkkk



Intergovernmental Agreement
Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
Emergency Assistance 2013-2014
September 13, 2013

Pages 16 — 21

Pages 16 — 21 were omitted intentionally.
They are signature pages for other districts / partners
of this Intergovernmental Agreement:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Janell Black
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 6 — Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review, 2012-2013
EXPLANATION: As required by state law, the district annually reviews, analyzes

and makes a public reporting of the number of physical restraints
and seclusions used during a school year.

This is the district’s report on physical restraints and seclusions
used during the 2012-2013 school year.

The analyzed data is provided in the attached report.

PRESENTER: Janell Black

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review, School Year: 2012-2013
RECOMMENDATION: This data is provided as information only.

REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

JB:1lc



Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review

School Year: 2012-2013 Date of Review: September 2013 Reviewer’s Name: Ben Kates
Date of Leadership Review: September 27,2013
Participants: Carl Smith, Deb Miller, Teri Pitts, Bob Cantwell

Total Restraints: 103

Total Restraints by Level/

Program:

Elementary 90

Middle 12

High 1

Post-secondary 0

Structured Skills Center 38

Structured Skills Annex 5

Students restrained greater than | 0

10 times

Number of restraints by Number of students
demographic: restrained by demographic:
Hispanic or Latino 0 0
American Indian or Alaska Native | 0 0
(includes Natives of North, South

and Central America)

Asian 0 0
Black or African American 11 5
Native Hawaiian or Pacific 0 0
Islander

White 80 36
Multi-racial 18 6
Students with no disability 14

Students with disabilities 89

S§SS0:]JB:bk:9.24.13 Functional Living Skills Program data was reviewed by Multnomah Education Service District and is not included in the counts above.




Total Seclusions: 18

Total Seclusions by Seclusions in locked

Level /Program: room:

Elementary 14 0

Middle 4 0

High 0 0

Post-secondary 0 0

Structured Skills Center 17 0

Structured Skills Annex 1 0

Number of seclusions by Number of students
demographic: secluded by demographic:
Hispanic or Latino 5 2
American Indian or Alaska | 0 0
Native (includes Natives of

North, South and Central

America)

Asian 0 0
Black or African American | 0 0
Native Hawaiian or Pacific | 0 0
Islander

White 13 0
Students with no disability | 0

Students with disabilities 10

Restraints/Seclusions by
untrained staff

2 restraints

S§SS0:]JB:bk:9.24.13 Functional Living Skills Program data was reviewed by Multnomah Education Service District and is not included in the counts above.




Unique * The restraints by non-trained staff were performed by middle school teachers (1 choir

Findings/Concerns/ and 1 math) breaking up fights.

Highlights: * Restraints at East Gresham have been radically reduced from 27 to 12 following
increased coaching and support from behavior coach, county mental health therapist,
counselor and use of restorative practices.

Recommendations: Behavior coaches review restraint/seclusion and suspension data monthly to ensure students

are getting the support they need.

Actions already taken:

We increased the number of OIS trainers from 1 to 3 by the end of the 2012-2013 school year.
All campus monitors and administrators were trained last year.

S§SS0:]JB:bk:9.24.13 Functional Living Skills Program data was reviewed by Multnomah Education Service District and is not included in the counts above.




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Anita Harris
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 7 - Spelling Contest Winner, Cheyenne Howatt
EXPLANATION: Cheyenne Howatt, an eighth grade student at Clear Creek Middle

School, placed first in Division 2 (grades 6-8) in the Gresham-
Barlow School District spelling competition held Thursday,
April 18, 2013. She went on to place first at the Multnomah
County Spelling Bee on Tuesday, May 8, 2013. This first place
county win allowed her to compete at the state level competition
held at Oregon State Fair on August 31, 2013.

Cheyenne earned a third place finish at the state level.

PRESENTER: Anita Harris

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Certificate of Recognition

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize
Cheyenne Howatt’s accomplishments.

REQUESTED ACTION: Present a certificate of recognition to Cheyenne Howatt for her
accomplishments.

AMH:sce:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Jim Schlachter

DATE: October 3, 2013

RE: No. 8 — Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update

EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation updates are typically

presented every-other month. Accordingly, the Foundation’s
executive director, Victoria Alley, or a representative will be
present this evening to report on Foundation activities.

PRESENTER: Victoria Alley or a Foundation representative
SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: None

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

dc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Athena Vadnais

DATE: October 3, 2013

RE: No. 9 - District Advisory Council (DAC) Report

EXPLANATION: The most recent DAC meeting was held on September 12, 2013, at
Gresham High School. Board members present were
Matt O’Connell, Carla Piluso, Kris Howatt, Dan Chriestenson, and
Dale Clark.
This evening, the board will hear a report concerning the DAC
meeting.

PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais

SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Minutes of the September 12, 2013, DAC meeting

MATERIALS: 2. Draft of 2013-14 DAC Roster

RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only.

REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

dc



2013-14
District Advisory Council Meeting

September 12, 2013
Y Gresham ngh School

DAC Members present:

Deep Creek ES Teri Kane West Gresham ES

East Gresham ES Clear Creek MS Christine Diedrich

FEast Orient ES Damascus MS Matt Wells
Teri Kane

Hall ES Amy Kruesi Dexter McCarty MS |Dawn Bures

Highland ES Gordon Russell MS

Hogan Cedars ES West Orient MS

Hollydale ES Gresham HS Dawn Bures
Sara Pohrman
Vonda Vensel

Kelly Creek ES Sam Barlow HS Sharon Tauss
Kelly Gerhart

North Gresham ES Capri Parker Springwater Trail HS |Jerilynn Olsen

Brad Parker
Powell Valley ES Alisa Goslin

School Board Members: Matt O’Connell, Carla Piluso, Kris Howatt, Dan Christenson,
and Dale Clark

Administrators: Jim Schlachter, Athena Vadnais, James Hiu, Teresa Ketelsen, Tim
Drilling, Anita Harris, Jerry Jones, Randy Bryant, Janell Black, and John Koch.

-MINUTES-

Called To Order

Chair Dawn Bures called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. and reviewed
the evening’s agenda.

District Introductions — Superintendent Jim Schlachter

Superintendent Jim Schlachter introduced the school board members. All of the
members are volunteers with at least four years of experience. Members of his district-
level administrative team were also introduced.

DAC Minutes — 9/13
Page 1 of 3
DB:jnh



Community Relations Director Athena Vadnais presided over DAC member
introductions. The DAC guidelines and a list of member duties were passed out. Ms.
Vadnais gave a brief overview of the document and what was expected of the DAC
members. She also mentioned that the DAC has its own page on the district website in
the school board section. DAC is the brainchild of past board members as a way to both
communicate with, and to receive input from community members.

At least one representative from each school needs to attend the meetings, if the
representative is unable to fulfill their duties, they should contact their principal, so
another person to attend in their stead.

If there is a topic that pertains to the district that you would like to add to an agenda —

speak with either Athena or Dawn Bures, the DAC chair. If the topic your interested in
is school specific, please set up a time to meet with your principal.

Bond Update-Superintendent Jim Schlachter and Board Chair Matt O’Connell

Superintendent Schlachter gave information about the school bond before voters in
November. He discussed community livability and its vital role in economic growth.
Vibrant and strong schools bring people and businesses in and that helps create
desirable places that people want to live in.

The difference between the State School Fund and School Bonds was then clarified.
State funds are decided by our lawmakers and go to day-to-day operations, cleaning
and maintenance. School bonds are for capital constructions and are decided by the
voters. They are for renovations, technology, heating, ventilation, electrical, plumbing,
etc.

The Bond Measure Planning Committee decided on 4 critical needs for our schools:
e Safety
* Make needed repairs
* Improve classroom technology
* Update classrooms (science labs, textbooks, etc)
The $210 million school bond, and would cost $1.56 per $1000 of a home’s assessed
value. For a typical home in the Gresham-Barlow School District the increase would be
about $22 per month.

From the school board, Matt O’Connell spoke with us about the bond. The district
gives facts about the bond, the board can advocate for it. O’Connell shared why the
school board decided to place a school bond on the ballot.

The presentation was followed by a question and answer time. Many of the questions
related to project timelines if the school bond is approved by voters.

DAC Minutes — 2/13
Page 2 of 3
AV:jnh



Tour of Gresham High School

Principal John Koch provided a tour of Gresham High School to allow DAC members
an opportunity to see the needs of Gresham High first hand. Mr. Koch shared that
Gresham High School was designed for a time when only about 25% of a generation
went to high school. Times have changed and the needs of our students have changed.

The deadline to register to vote is October 15" and the election is November 5"

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:30 p.m.

Minutes submitted by:
Dawn Bures
DAC Chair

DAC Minutes — 2/13
Page 3 of 3
AV:jnh



Draft

District Advisory Council
2013-14 Membership

Deep Creek ... ... Teri Kane
East Gresham | Melissa Smith
EastOrient . ... Midge Collins
Maise Kienle
Hall Amy Kruesi
Highland ... ... . To be determined
Hogan Cedars ... Tonia Gebhart
Jennifer Levins
Hollydale ... . .. To be determined
Kelly Creek ... Teresa Teem
North Gresham______ | Capri Parker
Brad Parker
Powell Valley__ ... .. Alisa Goslin-David
West Gresham To be determined
ClearCreek ... Diedre Pearson
Damascus ... Matt Wells
Teri Kane
Dexter McCarty .| Dawn Bures
Gordon Russell. To be determined
West Orient .| Midge Collins
Gresham High .| Vonda Vensel
Dawn Bures

Sara Pohrman

Barlow High Sharon Tauss

Kelly Gernhart

Jerilynn Olsen

JH:lc 10/1/13



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu

Anita Harris

DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 10 — Enrollment and Class Size Report
EXPLANATION: This report is intended to provide the board with a general

overview of K-12 enrollment during the initial opening of school,
and to identify staffing adjustments that have been made to
accommodate enrollment numbers.

This year’s September 24 district enrollment numbered 11,251
students. Projections for 2013-14 were based on very modest
growth. Enrollment as of September 24 was one student higher
than projections.

In addition to the overall enrollment numbers provided above, the
attached enrollment data provides specific information including
class size averages and other staffing/enrollment information.

We will briefly share with the board some additional comments
and respond to any questions at the board meeting.

PRESENTER: James Hiu and Anita Harris

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: September Enrollment Information, 2013-14

RECOMMENDATION: None

REQUESTED ACTION: This .re%ort is being provided as information only; no formal action is
required.

JH:pkh:lc



Gresham-Barlow School District 9/24/13
ENROLLMENT
PSU
2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
9/21/12 9/24/13 Projections Forecast
Elementary
K 792 783 815 865 874
1 855 846 821 930 924
2 788 840 873 973 948
3 790 791 800 984 992
4 861 778 780 888 1004
5 828 842 865 874 908
4914 4,880 4954 5514 5650
Middle School
6 879 840 828 985 911
7 882 887 872 931 1007
8 980 920 908 951 951
2741 2,647 2,608 2867 2869
High School
9 993 1,034 970 1,023 986
10 940 960 978 1,040 1,004
11 892 874 917 907 1000
12 839 856 823 900 900
3664 3,724 3688 3870 3890
11,319 11,251 11,250 12,251 12,409
Other:
Rosemary Anderson HS 54
L&C Montessori Charter 143
Arthur Academy 122
Metro East Web Academy 328
CAL** 2
ALP 26
675
11,926

** CAL students are recorded in their home school



2013-2014 Enrollment Count

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Gorman AM 27 27
Narath 12 15 27
Hathaway 13 11 24
Terveen 14 12 26
Chambers 22 12 34
Krell 17 14 31
Bjugan 12| 21 33
Secor 34 34
Totals 27 39 38 39 38 55 236
Sections/Grade 1.0 1.5 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.6 8.0
Average 27.0| 26.0 | 253 | 32.5| 32.8| 33.5 29.5

2013-14 Projections 240
Difference 4)

Kg | 1st | 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Gianotti AM 29 29
Gianotti PM 28 28
Meyer PM 29 29
Manzella 28 28
Pitts 28 28
Schilling 27 27
W. Nelson 27 27
Tarshis 26 26
Welty 25 25
McGill 32 32
Stauffer 30 30
Wallace 32 32
Powers 35 35
Ellert 33 33
M. Nelson 32 32
Totals 86 83 78 62 67 65 441
Sections/Grade 3.0 3.0/ 3.0 20 20 20 15.0
Average 28.7| 27.7| 26.0f 31.0f 33.5| 32.5 29.9

2013-14 Projections 471
Difference (30)




2013-2014 Enrollment Count

Kg | 1st | 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Walsh AM 27 27
Stinson PM 28 28
Bhear 32 32
Coburn 32 32
Horner 35 35
Lustig 34 34
Hoffert 32 32
Bice 33 33
Tesar 35 35
Jones 36 36
Hyman 13 17 30
Guinea 34 34
McGowan 34 34
Totals 55 64 69 65 84 85 422
Sections/Grade 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.4 2.6 13.0
Average* 27.5| 32.0 34.5| 325| 35.0] 327 32.5
added .5 FTE for 1st & 2nd grades

2013-14 Projections 421
Difference 1

Kg | 1st | 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Connors PM 26 26
Connors AM 27 27
Rudnicki 27 27
Boslar 31 31
Castellanos 31 31
Wirfs 30 30
Glove 29 29
Nock 27 27
Soell 28 28
Dadfarma 29 29
Poetsch 29 29
Gownrowski 17 12 29
Dilg 30 30
McCarthy 30 30
Minni 34 34
Johnson 32 32
Totals 80 92 84 75 72 66 469
Sections/Grade 30 3.0 30| 25| 25| 20 16.0
Average 26.7 | 30.7 | 28.0 | 30.0 [ 28.8 | 33.0 29.3
No additional FTE.

.5 from 5th moved to support 1st-4th grades 2013-14 Projections 519
Difference (50)




2013-2014 Enrollment Count

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Sexton AM 32 32
Sexton PM 32 32
Breyer All Day 31 31
Egger 21 21
Jones 25 25
Hudson 24 24
Sullivan 31 31
Carlson 30 30
Botteron 32 32
McJohnson 38 38
Serna 40 40
Held 33 33
Craddock 32 32
Brown 27 27
Moss 26 26
Schlachter 27 27
Totals 95 70 93 78 65 80 481
Sections/Grade 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 16.0
Average 3171 233 | 31.0| 39.0( 325 | 26.7 30.1
.5 FTE support added for 3rd grade

2013-14 Projections 490
Difference 9)

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Cohen AM 27 27
Cohen PM 27 27
Deggendorfer PM 28 28
Bishop 26 26
Hutchings 26 26
Stowe 26 26
Bredemeier 26 26
Fast 32 32
Frazier 31 31
Druffel 31 31
Gonzalez 29 29
Henderson/Rose 29 29
Martinez 29 29
Duty 34 34
Eisele 34 34
Iranon 33 33
Lee 35 35
Jones 36 36
McKenzie 37 37
Totals 82| 104 94 87 | 101 | 108 576
Sections/Grade 3.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 19.0
Average 273 | 26.0 | 31.3 | 29.0 | 33.7 | 36.0 30.3
1.0 FTE added to create a 1st grade section 2013-14 Projections 613

Difference (37)




2013-2014 Enrollment Count

Kg | 1st | 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
New Teacher AM 28 28
Nordstrom AM 28 28
Heath PM 29 29
Frediani 28 28
Woolworth 29 29
Yucho 14 13 27
Ramirez 26 26
Breese 26 26
Newport 30 30
Langston 29 29
Murdock 30 30
Wuethrich 29 29
Snodgrass 11 14 25
Mott 28 28
Moon 27 27
HUB 11 11
Totals 85 71 65 59 70 69 11 430
Sections/Grade 3.0 2.5 2.5 2.0 24 2.6 15.0
Average 283 | 284 | 260 | 29.5 | 28.7 | 26.5 27.9
.5 FTE added for Kindergarten section

2013-14 Projections 463
Difference (33)

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th [Other| Total
Priem AM 27 27
Priem PM 25 25
Carvajal AM 27 27
Kemp 30 30
Neighorn 31 31
Taylor 31 31
Hemstead 31 31
Hilsenteger 31 31
McGowan 31 31
Crouser 34 34
Holstrom 34 34
Seltzer 32 32
Lance 36 36
Ramberg 38 38
Wolf 15 21 36
Haas 38 38
Neiger 38 38
FSP 1 6 6
FSP 2 6 6
Totals 79 92 93 | 100 89 97 12 562
Sections/Grade 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.5 2.5 17.0
Average 26.3 | 30.7 | 31.0| 33.3| 35.6 | 38.8 32.6

2013-14 Projections 531
Difference 31




2013-2014 Enrollment Count

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Hagey AM 28 28
Hagey PM 30 30
Alexander-Blake AM 29 29
Harris 26 26
Sluman 26 26
Ryan 27 27
Anderson 27 27
Curtis 26 26
Ng 29 29
Thorne 28 28
Conan 30 30
Hirschmug] 28 28
Long 28 28
Ford 31 31
Grieve 33 33
Williams 32 32
Yand 26 26
Quinn 30 30
Bennett 29 29
Totals 87 | 106 83 86 96 85 0 543
Sections/Grade 3.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 19.0
Average 29.0 | 26,5 | 27.7 | 28.7 | 32.0| 28.3 28.6
.5 Kindergarten dissolved.

1.0 FTE added to 5th grade. 2013-14 Projections 591
Eliminated a 4/5 blend Difference (48)

Kg | 1st [ 2nd | 3rd | 4th | 5th |Other| Total
Love AM 30 30
Love PM 27 27
Bradley 28 28
Miller 28 28
Park 29 29
Anderson/Iltz 32 32
Stout 32 32
Edeline 31 31
Valenzuela 37 37
Greenburg 37 37
Hodgson 30 30
Stephens 31 31
Halligan 27 27
Young 30 30
Heiser 29 29
Totals 57 85 95 74 61 86 458
Sections/Grade 2.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 15.0
Average 285 | 283 | 31.7| 370 30.5| 28.7 30.5
.5 FTE moved from Kindergarten section
to be used as support for 3rd grade 2013-14 Projections 460

Difference

(2)




2013-2014 Enrollment Count

e [ 1ot [ 20 | 3 | a0 [ 50 [other] Toml
Martin AM 28 28
Martin PM 26 26
Creighton 14 19 33
Galloway 15 16 31
Griffin 14 19 33
Fogle 23 6 29
Keller 18 10 28
Frewing 24 6 30
Gaddy 22 30
Hufendick 23 30
Totals 54 43 54 65 37 45 298
Sections/Grade 20| 13| 16| 22| 13| 15 9.9
Average 27.0| 33.1| 329| 295 | 285 | 30.0 30.0
.5 FTE added to Kindergarte to create PM class
2013-14 Projections 274
Difference 24
2013-2014 Elementary Summary
12/13 13/14
FTE School K 1 2 3 4 5 | Other| Total | Average| Average
7.5|Deep Creek 27 39 38 39 38 55 236 26.7 29.5
13.5|East Gresham 83 83 78 62 67 64 442 29.8 29.5
12|East Orient 54 64 68 65 84 85 423 30.8 32.5
16(Hall 80 89 79 75 72 62 457 28.8 26.9
15[Highland 95 70 93 78 65 83 484 25.8 30.3
16.5|Hogan Cedars 82 104 94 87 101 108 576 32.2 32.0
13.5|Hollydale 84 71 65 59 70 69 11 429 27.3 28.6
15.5|Kelly Creek 79 92 93 100 89 97 12 562 28.4 33.1
17|North Gresham 88 106 83 87 94 85 543 31.0 28.6
14.5[Powell Valley 57 85 95 74 61 83 455 30.5 28.4
9[West Gresham 54 43 54 65 37 45 298 30.1 30.1
142.5 783 846 840 791 778 836 31 4905
Sections 28.01 30.3| 28.6| 249 243 268 163.0
Ratio 28.0f 279 293 31.8f 320 31.1 30.1




Middle Schools

Staff 6 7 8 Other | Total
CCMS 208 223 226 657
DMS 50 66 62 178
DMMS 204 202 214 620
GRMS 250 249 280 779
WOMS 128 147 138 413

840 887 920 2,647

Core Sections 29.0 29.0 29.0 87.0
Ratio 29.0 30.6 31.7 30.43
2013-14 Projections 2,608

Difference 39

9/24/13



2013-14 MS CORE CLASS RANGE and AVERAGE

9/24/13
CCMS Low | High [Sections| Average
06 Math 21 27 7 29.1
06 Language Arts 24 29 8 25.8
06 Science 25 28 8 25.9
06 Social Studies 22 29 8 254
07 Math 21 32 6 27.3
07 Language Arts 24 32 8 27.4
07 Science 27 35 7 31.7
07 Social Studies 21 31 8 27.3
08 Math 23 31 7 27.3
08 Algebra 28 28 1 28.0
08 Lang Arts & Writing 26 29 10 27.5
08 Science 25 30 8 27.8
08 Social Studies 21 32 8 27.3
DMS Low | High [Sections| Average
06 Math 21 29 2 25.5
06 Language Arts 22 25 4 25.0
06 Science 22 29 2 25.5
06 Social Studies 25 25 2 25.0
07 Math 32 33 2 27.5
07 Language Arts 32 33 2 32.5
07 Science 32 33 2 32.5
07 Social Studies 32 33 2 32.5
08 Math 33 33 1 33.0
08 Algebra 27 27 1 27.0
08 Lang Arts & Writing 30 30 2 30.0
08 Science 27 33 2 30.0
08 Social Studies 30 30 2 30.0
DMMS Low | High [Sections| Average
06 Math 24 33 6 30.0
06 Language Arts 23 30 14 27.4
06 Science 25 37 6 31.7
06 Social Studies 22 30 6 26.0
07 Math 17 34 7 25.1
07 Language Arts 24 30 14 27.1
07 Science 28 33 6 31.0
07 Social Studies 24 33 6 29.2
08 Math 32 36 5 34.0
08 Algebra 32 32 1 32.0
08 Lang Arts & Writing 28 38 12 33.7
08 Science 29 37 6 33.8
08 Social Studies 29 36 6 32.2




2013-14 MS CORE CLASS RANGE and AVERAGE

9/24/13
GRMS Low | High [Sections| Average
06 Math 28 34 8 31.4
06 Language Arts 30 34 8 31.3
06 Science 28 33 8 32.5
06 Social Studies 24 33 8 29.8
07 Math 28 32 8 30.8
07 Language Arts 26 32 9 304
07 Science 28 32 8 31.1
07 Social Studies 30 31 8 304
08 Math 31 37 6 33.7
08 Algebra 32 35 2 33.5
08 Lang Arts & Writing 31 35 8 34.0
08 Science 28 38 8 34.3
08 Social Studies 28 33 8 31.6
WOMS Low | High [Sections| Average

06 Math 21 33 5 25.2
06 Language Arts 22 29 10 254
06 Science 21 30 5 25.6
06 Social Studies 19 30 5 25.2
07 Math 23 31 5 27.6
07 Language Arts 26 31 10 28.7
07 Science 21 35 5 28.8
07 Social Studies 20 32 5 27.6
08 Math 23 30 4 27.5
08 Algebra 28 28 1 28.0
08 Lang Arts & Writing 26 30 10 27.8
08 Science 22 29 5 27.6
08 Social Studies 24 30 5 26.8




Date of Count: 9/24/13
Sam Barlow HS
9 10 11 12 Other Total
Actual 492 451 | 428 376 1,747
2013-14 Projections 1,767
Difference (20)
[Core Classes:
Math Low | High Total Sec Avg 13-14 12-13
Algebra 1 20 33 400 15 26.7 | All Math [All Math
Algebra 1.5 28 43 263 8 329
Geometry 24 44 385 11 35.0
College Prep Math 32 39 71 21 355 30.9 30.2
Algebra 2 22 42 299 10 29.9
Pre-Calculus 27 41 131 4 32.8
Calculus 28 28 28 1 28.0
AP Calc 30 30 30 1 30.0
Science Low | High Total Sec Avg 13-14 12-13
Biology 32 43 319 9| 354| AllSci | All Sci
Honors Biology 31 38 136 4 34.0
AP Biology 32 32 32 1 32.0
Anatomy & Physiology 43 43 43 1 43.0
Chemistry 38 41 119 3 39.7
AP Chemistry 25 34 59 2 295 35.2 30.0
Physics 39 39 39 1 39.0
Physical Science 30 40 308 9 34.2
Honors Physical Science 34 41 185 5 37.0
Environmental Biology 25 38 95 3 31.7
Marine Biology 1 31 36 97 3 323
Green Science 34 41 116 3 38.7
Social Studies Low | High Total Sec Avg 13-14 12-13
AP Human Geography 34 34 34 1 340 ANLSS | AllSS
AP European History 29 29 29 1 29.0
AP US History 30 39 69 2 345
US History 29 40 404 11 36.7
Government 22 42 257 8 32.1
Honors Govt 32 32 32 1 32.0 33.0 31.6
Economics 26 44 128 4 32.0
Global Perspectives 24 38 317 10 31.7
Psychology 21 31 52 2 26.0
Military History 29 29 29 1 29.0
English Low | High Total Sec Avg 13-14 12-13
English 1-2 22 35 364 13 28.0 | Al ELA [All ELA
Honors English 1-2 26 40 103 3 343
English 3-4 22 43 300 91 333
Honors English 3-4 32 39 144 4 36.0
English 5-6 26 39 224 71 320 31.3 30.9
Honors English 5-6 22 22 22 1 22.0
World Cultures 44 44 44 1 44.0
Pac NW Lit 41 41 41 1 41.0
AP Eng Comp 25 33 83 3 27.7
AP Lit 26 26 52 2( 26.0

BHS




Date of Count: 9/24/13
Gresham HS
9 10 11 12 Total
Actual 490 479 | 406 437 1,812
2013-14 Projections 1,770
Difference 42
[Core Classes:
Math Low | High Total | Sec | Avg 13-14 12-13
Algebra 1 & House, CO 14 39 442 15 29.5 | All Math | All Math
Algebra 1.5 32 39 252 8 31.5
Geometry & CO 21 43 312 10 31.2
Honors Geometry 37 39 76 2 380 33.0 35.8
Algebra 2 32 45 300 71 429
IB Math 32 41 175 5 35.0
Calculus 23 35 58 2 29.0
Science Low | High Total | Sec | Avg 13-14 12-13
Physical Sci & House 14 43 456 141 32.6| AllSci All Sci
Applied Biology 22 22 24 1 24.0
Biology & CL 28 42 313 8 39.1
Earth Science 38 38 36 1 36.0
Zoology 30 42 148 4 37.0
IB Biology SL 26 40 93 3 31.0 343 34.2
IB Biology HL 26 40 90 3 30.0
IB Chemistry 26 26 23 1 23.0
Chemistry 33 35 202 6 337
Physics 37 38 75 21 375
Botany 40 40 120 3 40.0
Social Studies Low | High Total | Sec | Avg 13-14 12-13
IB History / Amer 24 40 104 31 347| AISS All SS
IB 20th Century 29 46 75 2 375
IB Soc Anthro 19 19 19 1 19.0
Global Perspectives 39 44 296 7 42.3
Psychology 38 38 38 1 38.0
US History & CL 20 42 370 10| 37.0 35.2 333
Honors Govt 33 34 67 2 335
Government & CL 22 30 131 5 26.2
Economics 23 41 164 5 32.8
Honors Economics 31 41 72 2 36.0
English Low | High Total | Sec | Avg 13-14 12-13
English 1-2 plus House 20 40 453 14 324 AHELA | AlIELA
English 3-4 27 44 263 91 292
Honors English 3-4 32 39 179 5 35.8
English 5-6 23 40 199 6| 332
Senior English ES, & CO 6 21 74 6 12.3 30.4 35.9
Senior English 37 44 197 5 39.4
IB English HL1 26 35 86 21 43.0
IB English HL2 16 38 88 3 29.3
Language Arts 2 & 3 20 24 44 2 22.0

GHS




Date of Count 9/24/13
Springwater Trail HS 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 Other| Total

43 39 43 37 162

2013-14 Projections 151

Difference 11

Core Classes:
Math Low | High Total | Sec | Avg
Algebra 1 25 16 58 31193
Geometry 1 20 26 46 21 23.0
Algebra 1.5 28 28 28 1] 28.0
Algebra 2 12 12 12 1| 12.0
Science
Biology 1 17 23 40 2] 20.0
Physical Science 23 28 51 31 17.0
Integrated Science 7 7 7 1 7.0
Physics 13 22 40 21 20.0
Social Studies
US History 1 18 23 41 21 20.5
Government 19 22 41 21 205
Global Perspectives 1 16 19 35 21 175
English
English 1-2 23 28 51 31 17.0
English 3-4 20 24 44 2] 22.0
English 5-6 12 15 27 2] 135
English 7-8 9 20 29 2| 145
Creative Writing 14 14 14 1] 14.0
Reading 1 18 18 18 1| 18.0
GBSD /9/26/13 STHS




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Tim Drilling
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 11 - Gresham Arthur Academy — Annual Review
EXPLANATION: In accordance with ORS 338.095 (1), the Gresham Arthur

Academy must submit a report to the district and the State Board
of Education each year on the performance of the school and its
students in the preceding fiscal/school year. This report must
include, among other things, information regarding the goals and
outcomes relating to student performance, and a look forward at
the school year ahead.

Amber Sparks, principal of the Gresham Arthur Academy, will
summarize the report at the board meeting.

PRESENTER: Tim Drilling, Amber Sparks

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Portland State University Evaluation Report
RECOMMENDATION: This material is being provided as information only.
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required.

TD:lc



GRADUATE SCHOOL OF EDUCATION
Center for Student Success

Gresham Arthur Academy

Charter School Evaluation Report 2013
Gresham-Barlow School District

17)]
(7]
()}
o
(6]
|
w
M~
©
()]
()]
(6]
.
|
©
(]
x
©
o
3
3
N\
N
VAN

Portland State

UNIVERSITY




Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Charter School Evaluation

Charter School
Gresham Arthur Academy
1890 NE Cleveland Ave.
Gresham, OR 97030
503-667-4900

Charter Contacts

Amber Sparks, Principal
503-667-4900
asparks@arthuracademy.org

Sponsoring School District
Gresham-Barlow School District (GBSD)

School District Contact

Tim Drilling, Executive Director of Assessment & Accountability
503-618-2450

drilling@gresham.k12.or.us

Center for Student Success Evaluators
Deborah Sommer, Consultant
Linda Jessell, Director

Center for Student Success Contact Information
503-725-9519

centerforsuccess@pdx.edu
www.pdx.edu/ceed/success

Evaluation Purpose
This evaluation is a third-party evaluation of the Gresham Arthur Academy charter school during its 6th
year of operation, 2012-2013.


mailto:centerforsuccess@pdx.edu
http://www.pdx.edu/ceed/success

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Table of Contents

INEFOAUCTION ...t e e 1-2
1.0 Mission-Specific Goals/Admissions & Enrollment...................... 3-5
2.0 Overall StUdent SUCCESS.......oueeeurreereiirecre s s seenenes 6-8
3.0 Longitudinal Analysis of Student Achievement..........cccccevvvennee. 9-12
4.0 Federal Accountability: Student Performance & Programes........ 12-18
5.0 State AccouNntability......ccccvevieceneiiceieecrecce e 19-26
6.0 Fiscal Performance and Accountability........ccccceouvirinininincneennn. 27-33
7.0 GOVEINANCE.....iictieiricetr ettt e s et e s et enens 34-36
Recommendations/CoNCIUSION.........cecveceiveieeceececeeeeee e 37-38
SUMMArY Of FINAINGS..cccioeiiie et 39
Appendix A: Evaluation Team Biographies........c.ccccovevereieneienninnnns 40
Appendix B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric.........cceecervicniuineenenn 41-55

Portland State

UNIVERSITY



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

INTRODUCTION

The Center for Student Success (CSS) has reviewed multiple documents provided by the Gresham Arthur
Academy as well as interviewed key individuals in person, phone and email to ensure that the school is
fulfilling the provisions of its charter with the Gresham-Barlow School District and fully complying with
federal and state statutory requirements regarding charter school operations and accountability in
Oregon.

A CSS evaluator visited the Gresham Arthur Academy on May 21, 2013 and interviewed the school
principal, the Program Director, and the Business Manager. Staff also examined materials provided by
the principal and office staff and visited classrooms. Requests for additional information to clarify
guestions and operational details were also made, and staff has been very responsive and thorough in
terms of the information provided. An additional interview with the Board Chair of the Mastery Learning
Institute was conducted on June 25, 2013 to gain perspective on long-term charter school plans as well
as the school’s current status relative to student achievement, parent involvement, and fiscal
sustainability.

The resulting evaluation of the Arthur Academy in Gresham is based upon its performance relative to 1)
federal and state statutes pertaining to the administration of charter schools; 2) general standards of
effective school operation; and 3) any additional requirements of the Gresham-Barlow School District as
a condition of charter authorization. In order to evaluate the school’s performance, the Center for
Student Success has developed a rubric to assess the Gresham Arthur Academy in the following key
areas:

1. Mission specific goals/Admission & Enrollment
2. Overall Student Success

3. Student Achievement

I

. Federal Accountability

5. State Accountability

6. Fiscal Performance and Accountability
7. Governance

Within each of these more general areas, specific competencies are identified that contribute to the
overall capability of the school to meet the expectations within the general areas of school operation.
A rating is assigned to each of the competencies and the range of the ratings includes: exceeding,
meeting, nearly meeting, and not meeting. The evaluator determines the rating on the basis of the
review of the evidence provided by the charter school as well as evidence collected during the site visit.
The rubric can be found in Appendix B of this report.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

1



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Currently there are six small, highly focused Arthur Academies in the Portland metropolitan area that
are structured around a research-based curriculum designed by Charles Arthur, a recently retired special
education teacher in the Reynolds School District. The first Arthur Academy opened in 2002 in the David
Douglas School District, and in 2003, the parent organization (Mastery Learning Institute), launched an
expansion project to replicate the original Arthur Academy model—and its success—in other school
districts around the Portland area. The Institute opened the second and third Arthur Academies in
September 2004 in the Woodburn and Reynolds school districts and the fourth Academy in the fall of
2005 in the Portland school district. The fifth and sixth Academies opened in the St. Helens and
Gresham-Barlow school districts in September 2007. 2012-2013 was the sixth year of operation for the
Gresham Arthur Academy, the newest addition to the six-school consortium.

This report was commissioned by the Gresham-Barlow School District administration and remains the
property of the school district. A draft copy of the report was provided to District staff prior to final
publication in order to ensure the accuracy of data reported.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

2



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

1.0 MISSION-SPECIFIC GOALS/ ADMISSIONS & ENROLLMENT

1.1 Goals Specific to Mission Rating: Exceeding
Has the charter school met its mission-specific goals as outlined in the contract with the
School District?

Evidence:
e |nitial Charter School Agreement between GBSD and Mastery Learning Institute dated 9/6/2007
for five year period ending June 30, 2013
e Charter School Renewal dated April 2012 for 2013-2018
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook
e  Principal and Program Director interview
e Gresham Arthur Academy website

The school mission statement - as identified in the school’s founding documents as well as in school
publications - clearly supports the motto of the Gresham Arthur Academy: Everybody Reads. The
mission established for the Gresham Arthur Academy in its initial and renewal Charter School
Agreements focuses on reading:

Every single student, regardless of ethnicity, parental income, culture or native
language, will become a fluent reader and will master the academic and intellectual
skills necessary to succeed at the next level of schooling.

The principal and Program Director described the Gresham Arthur Academy as a school with a highly—
structured program focused on teaching core academics in which all students are successful, regardless
of their academic background. They believed that the all-school focus on reading, and the emphasis on
direct instruction, mastery learning and choral response, helps students build confidence and reduces
incidents of misbehavior.

The school uses Reading Mastery for its reading program and focuses on “learning to read” (Direct
Instruction) and “reading to learn” (Core Knowledge). Core knowledge includes geography, history,
science, and subjects leading to cultural literacy. According to the principal, these two components of
the Arthur Academy model complement each other and contribute to the school’s ability to reach one
of its primary goals: to have every kindergarten student reading above grade level by end of the year.

Gresham Arthur Academy is described online as featuring classrooms that use positive behavior
management in a safe, accepting and stimulating environment. In addition, the school’s website
promises that

All kindergarten students will learn to read and do fundamental math.
All students accelerate their learning.

Students that have struggled will catch up.

High achieving students will continue to excel.

Clearly, the Gresham Arthur Academy views its program as unique. With a six year history of success

Portland State University
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

with the students and families it serves, the school is meeting the conditions of its charter with the
Gresham Barlow School District as well as its original mission.

1.2 Student Admissions & Conditions of Enroliment Rating: Exceeding
Is there evidence that the charter school is following statutory and district guidelines
regarding student admission and enrollment?

Evidence:
e |nitial Charter School Agreement between GBSD and Mastery Learning Institute dated 9/6/2007
for five year period ending June 30, 2013
e Charter School Renewal dated April 2012 for 2013 - 2018
e Interviews with principal, Program Director, MLI Board Chair
e Charter School Annual Report, 2011-2012 School Year
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook

The 2012 Parent Student Handbook states, “Gresham Arthur Academy does not discriminate in any of
its programs, procedures or practices against any person on the basis of age, citizenship, color, disability,
national origin, political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, veteran status, or any other
characteristic protected under the law.” As a condition of its original charter with Gresham-Barlow, the
school is also directed to function in an all-inclusive, non-discriminatory manner with regards to student
admissions and enroliment.

As a result, the school is “open enrollment” in nature, and in June 2012 reported an enrollment of 166
students who were 74% white, 12% Hispanic, 3% African-American, 3% Asian Pacific Islander, 1% Indian,
1% Native American, and 6% multiracial. Overall enrollment was 26% total minority. Center for Student
Success staff found no evidence of discrimination in the school’s enrollment policies or procedures.

The original charter school application with Gresham Barlow School District (2007-2013) requires that
enrollment priority be given to resident students. In fact, according the principal, the original reason
that Gresham Arthur Academy was first created was because there were over 100 Gresham Barlow
students who were on the waiting list for the David Douglas and Reynolds Arthur Academies. The school
was established to address this need and opened with 100 students in grades K-3 in 2007.

The current enrollment process continues to give Gresham Barlow students preference in terms of
admission. Since the school caps enroliment at no more than 30 students in each grade and does not
“blend” classrooms to balance class sizes, the school uses a complex lottery process to determine
admissions based on priorities described by the principal as “#1, siblings; #2, Gresham Barlow residents;
and #3, non-resident students.”

The school begins taking applications for the following school year on January 1. All applications
received between January 1st and March 31st go into an initial lottery that takes place on April 1st. Prior
to the first lottery drawing, the applications are put into two groups, in district and out of district

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

4



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

applicants. The lottery begins with the in district applications which are drawn at random for the open
spots in each classroom. If all of the in district applications are placed and there is still space available at
a given grade level, then out of district applications are randomly drawn to fill the remaining openings.
The applications that are left after all spots have been filled are drawn at random and put on the wait
list in the order they are drawn. There is a second lottery on May 1st, and a third on June 1** which
follow the same format as the lottery on April 1st.

It should be noted that four of the current Arthur Academies are K-5, one is K-6 and only one of the six
Arthur Academies has added middle school grades to offer a K-8 program. Because Gresham Arthur
Academy is essentially full, and because the school has rented upstairs space for regular classrooms, a
specials classroom and an office from Mountain View Christian Church for all six years of its operation,
the question was asked regarding whether there were plans for expansion. Both the principal and
Program Director indicated that the Arthur Academy curriculum has been proven highly effective for
elementary students and questioned why a school would want to expand to grade levels beyond what it
already did so well. In addition, they spoke highly of the collaborative relationship between the charter
school and the church staff. They made it clear that the school has no plans at the present to either
relocate or to add grade levels beyond K-5 in order to expand its student population.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

5



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

2.0 OVERALL STUDENT SUCCESS

2.1 Enrollment/Retention/Attendance Rating: Exceeding
To what extent are students making academic progress as measured by enrollment/retention

rates and attendance?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e Charter School Annual Reports: 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012
e Quarterly Attendance Reports 2012-2013
e Enrollment Projections for 2013-2014

When the school first opened six years ago as a K-3 and was not well known, recruiting for the first 100
students was required. Now the principal indicated, “We do not need to recruit. They just come.” The
school currently has 105 applications for kindergarten on the waiting list for next year, for example. The
school is essentially “full” given next year’s enrollment projections.

Enrollment Projections for 2013-2014

Kindergarten =30 Grade 3=30
Grade 1 =30 Grade 4 =30
Grade 2 =28 Grade 5=29

In June 2012 the school reported an enrollment of 166 with an 80% retention rate from the prior school
year. First quarter reports for the 2012-2013 school year indicate a 95.81% attendance rate. The school
has established a stable enrollment through its proven ability to retain as well as attract new students.
The fact that there are waiting lists at almost every grade ensures that this trend will continue.

2.2 Parent Satisfaction Rating: Exceeding
To what extent do parent survey respondents indicate satisfaction with students' academic

progress and the educational program?

Evidence:
e Charter School Annual Report: 2011-2012
e Exhibit B: Charter School Agreement
e K-5 Parent Survey Results, April 2013
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook
e Dates/agendas for Parent Nights: 2012-2013
e Interview with principal/Program Director

Although many aspects of the Gresham Arthur Academy are noteworthy, parent satisfaction and/or

Portland State University
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

involvement stands out as an essential feature of the school program. The school, parents, and students
are tightly linked. Every day parents are at the school, bringing or picking up their students. 225 parent
volunteer hours were logged in 2011-2012, and there is ongoing parent contact with teachers,
volunteers, and other school staff. The school reports high attendance at the two annual parent-teacher
conferences where student progress and areas for growth are discussed.

April 2012 data from the school’s annual report to the Gresham-Barlow School Board of Directors
indicate positive parent survey results. 85% of respondents indicated they were “highly satisfied,” and
14% indicated that they were “satisfied” with their child’s experience at Gresham Arthur Academy.
Even more telling, 99% of respondents indicated they wanted their child(ren) to continue at Arthur
Academy.

In the April 2013 parent survey, 76% of respondents indicated they were “highly satisfied” and 23%
were “satisfied.” 95% of parents completing the survey were planning on having their student(s)
continue at Gresham Arthur Academy.

It is important to note that 81% of the current students live outside the neighborhood where the school
is located. Although the Gresham Barlow School District will allow students to ride GBSD buses that
travel in the vicinity of Mountain View Christian Church to get to and from school, the principal
indicated that no parent has exercised this option. Instead, parents bring their children to school and
pick them up, making that effort because they are happy with their student’s progress and so elect not
to take the easier course of having their student(s) attend a more conveniently located neighborhood
school.

In the materials assembled for the site visit by Center for Student Success, the principal included the
actual 2013 parent surveys recently collected at parent conferences. The comments were quite positive
regarding the responsiveness of school staff and the academic progress being made by students. One
area for improvement was the request for more information in general and specifically on the school’s
website. When asked if they were “adequately informed,” 80% of parents responding to this year’s
survey said “Yes,” with 18% indicating “Sometimes” and 2% saying “No.”

CSS evaluators also noted the lack of information on the school’s website when preparing for the site
visit in May 2013. The latest entry was from fall 2011 and there did not appear to be newsletters posted.
The principal and Program Director indicated that the Business Manager had created the basic website
two years earlier but the fact that there had been three principals at Gresham Arthur Academy in six
years meant that this priority “had to take a back seat.” 2012-2013 was the current principal’s first year,
and she anticipated having more time to devote to development of the website in 2013-2014.

CSS evaluators recommend that Gresham Arthur Academy do the following:

o Follow up with parents in fall 2013 to survey them regarding what information they want to
see on the school’s website. Get specific examples of communication “lapses” from their
perspective and then address those issues.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

7



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Examine the websites of other charter schools to determine the type of information being
shared electronically with parents

Develop a plan regarding the regular updating of the school’s website and establish
expectations for staff in terms of the timely notification of important events and information

Portland State University | 8
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

3.0 LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

3.1 Student Achievement: Reading Rating: Exceeding
Over time, has student achievement in Reading improved measurably?

Evidence:
e 2013 Preliminary OAKS Achievement Data: Grades 3, 4, 5 Reading
e 2011-2012 Oregon Report Card
o  OAKS Report 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2012-2013
e 2011-2012 Annual Report

According to the ODE website, the purposes of the Oregon Statewide Assessment Program are (1) to
provide information on individual student achievement on performance standards set by the State
Board of Education at grade and benchmark levels; (2) to provide information for federal ESEA
requirements and for policy decisions by the legislature, the governor, the State Board of Education, and
local school districts; (3) to support instructional program improvement efforts; and (4) to inform the
public about student achievement in Oregon schools. Additionally, beginning with the class of 2012,
components of the state assessment system will be one means of demonstrating proficiency on
Essential Skills required for receiving an Oregon diploma.

The ODE website provides cautions when comparing OAKS student achievement data over previous
years’ data given changes in Common Core State Standards and the adoption of new “cut scores”
effective for the 2011-2012 school year. As a result, the 2012-2013 results for Gresham Arthur Academy
are presented in comparison only to the prior year’s results, 2011-2012. Prior years’ achievement data,
however, indicate the same pattern of high student achievement and growth.

The chart below reports summary data for individual grades in 2011-2012 from the Oregon Department
of Education website as reported to the Gresham Barlow Board of Directors in the school’s 2011-2012
Annual Report. As noted below, Gresham Arthur Academy students have performed very well on the
state assessment in reading.

Reading Scores: Total Population
Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standards
Gresham Arthur Gresham Barlow State of
Academy District Oregon
2011-2012 School Year
Grade 3 63% 61% 70%
Grade 4 82% 70% 74%
Grade 5 92% 63% 69%
2012-2013 School Year
Grade 3 86% 59% 66%
Grade 4 92% 61% 73%
Grade 5 70% 61% 68%

Portland State University | 9
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Gresham Arthur Academy students have scored higher than the Gresham-Barlow School District
averages in all tested grades both this year and last year. Gresham Arthur Academy students have also
scored higher than the state averages in all tested grades both this year and last year with the single
exception of Grade 3 in 2011-2012. Of particular note in comparing this year’s preliminary data with last
year’s official testing results is the significant increase in the number of students meeting or exceeding
state standards in reading at Grade 3. School staff are to be commended for these results. There is a
drop in reading scores over that same period for students in Grade 5, however. As a result, CSS
evaluators recommend that Gresham Arthur Academy:

Analyze both instructional practices and assessment results in reading at both grades 3 and 5 to
determine practices contributing to student success or those in need of improvement.

Gresham Arthur Academy also tests students in K-2 in reading using a Stanford-Binet assessment tool.
Based on 50% as an average score, students tested in spring 2011 attained the following results:
Kindergarten = 57%; Grade 1 = 82%; Grade 2 = 86%. Given the school’s emphasis on direct instruction in
reading, and its high retention rate of students, these data seem to indicate that entering
kindergarteners reading slightly above average when they enter the school improve their reading
abilities significantly because of their enrollment in the Arthur Academy’s highly structured program.

3.2 Student Achievement: Math Rating: Exceeding
Over time, has student achievement in Math improved measurably?

Evidence:
e 2013 Preliminary OAKS Achievement Data: Grades 3, 4, 5 Math
e 2011-2012 Oregon Report Card
o OAKS Report 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2012-2013
e 2011-2012 Annual Report

The chart below reports summary data for individual grades in 2011-2012 from the Oregon Department
of Education website as reported to the Gresham Barlow Board of Directors in the school’s 2011-2012
Annual Report. The data presented for 2012-2013 is the recently released data from the ODE website.
As noted below, Gresham Arthur Academy students generally outperform other students on the state
assessment in mathematics.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

10



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Math Scores: Total Population
Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding State Standards
Gresham Arthur Gresham Barlow State of
Academy District Oregon
2011-2012 School Year
Grade 3 47% 52% 64%
Grade 4 89% 58% 66%
Grade 5 79% 51% 59%
2012-2013 School Year
Grade 3 83% 49% 61%
Grade 4 92% 51% 64%
Grade 5 50% 48% 58%

Of particular note in comparing this year’s data with last year’s testing results is the exceptional increase
in the number of students meeting or exceeding state standards in mathematics at Grade 3. Given the
drop in scores over that same period for students in Grade 5, the same pattern noted for reading (see
3.1), CSS evaluators recommend that Gresham Arthur Academy:

e Examine OAKS and other data to determine what overall changes in instructional
practice/other factors in grade 3 contributed to significant gains in both reading and
mathematics scores from 2011-2012 to 2012-2013.

e Examine OAKS and other data to determine what overall changes in instructional
practice/other factors in grade 5 contributed to significant decline in both reading and
mathematics scores from 2011-2012 to 2012-2013.

3.3 Comparative Student Achievement Rating: Exceeding
How does the charter school's performance compare to the sponsoring school district and the
state as a whole?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e 2011-2012 Oregon Report Card
o  OAKS Report 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2012-2013
e 2011-2012 Annual Report
e ODE School Rating Report: 2012

Data presented in Sections 3.1 and 3.2 include scores of Gresham Arthur Academy students in reading
and mathematics in comparison to statewide results and in comparison to other students in the
Gresham-Barlow School District. Gresham Arthur Academy students consistently outperform other
students in reading and math as measured by OAKS assessments.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

11



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

4.0 FEDERAL ACCOUNTABILITY: STUDENT PERFORMANCE & PROGRAMS

4.1 Student Achievement Rating: Exceeding
Did the charter school meet Federal targets in math, reading, participation, attendance and
for subgroups as required by the interim accountability system approved through the ESEA
waiver process for 2012?

Evidence:
e 2011-2012 Oregon Report Card
e  OAKS Report 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2012-2013
e 2011-2012 Annual Report

The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB, Public Law 107-110) required the state of Oregon to
annually determine whether schools, districts, and the state have made adequate yearly progress (AYP)
toward the goal of having all students meet rigorous state academic standards by the 2013-2014 school
year. For the past several years, the performance of students in all schools, districts, and the state as
well as demographic subgroups of students, has been measured using the Oregon Assessment of
Knowledge and Skills (OAKS) with annual results compared against annual performance targets. In fall,
2011, however, Congress announced that as a feature of ESEA reauthorization, states would have the
opportunity to request flexibility from specific mandates while maintaining a strong commitment to
accountability and high standards for all students.

As a result, in January 2012, Oregon submitted an Elementary and Secondary Act (ESEA) flexibility
proposal to develop its own alternatives to meeting Federal accountability standards for public schools.
With the approval of its application in July 2012, Oregon was then able to begin the work of retooling
the mechanisms of the ESEA, or No Child Left Behind Act, to create a more accountable and responsive
system to meet the needs of Oregon students and strengthen Oregon schools.

The Oregon Department of Education’s website includes an Executive Summary of Oregon’s Approved
ESEA Flexibility Waiver which highlights the core elements of Oregon’s interim accountability system,
some of which are already being implemented in 2012-2013 and some of which are still in development.
Selected elements of the new accountability system that pertain to Gresham Arthur Academy include
the following:

e Replacing the federal system of Adequate Yearly Progress (met/not met
designation) with an “interim accountability system” for the 2012 report that will (1)
use the existing Oregon Report Card methodology to provide a rating of
Outstanding, Satisfactory, or In Need of Improvement for all schools; (2) include a
report that describes a school’s performance for all students and subgroups next to
an Annual Measurable Objective (AMO) of 70% for reading and math (67% for
graduation); (3); use a modified version of the Colorado Rating System to identify
Title | schools that need support (priority & focus schools) or that are performing
well (model schools).

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

12



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

e Focusing on individual student growth in core skills of reading and math, in addition
to achievement and graduation, to differentiate between the performance of
Oregon’s schools.

e Focusing on closing the achievement gap between all students and those historically
underserved.

e Developing a new report card that (1) creates a single system of accountability for
the state that is both understandable to the public and aligned with key outcomes
identified in the achievement compact; (2) more accurately reflects growth to (and
beyond) standard as a desirable outcome for Oregon’s students; and (3) looks
beyond standardized test scores in reading and math, to measures of broader
content, more complex thinking skills, and characteristics critical to success in
college and workplace.

In terms of comparing the performance of students at Gresham Arthur Academy to those attending
school elsewhere, it should be noted that for three years in a row (2009-2012), Gresham Arthur
Academy has received an OUTSTANDING rating on its annual Oregon Report Card. This achievement is
highly commendable and reflects a great deal of focus and dedication on the part of the school staff.

One of several factors in computing a school’s final rating is whether it met the Annual Yearly Progress
goals set by the Federal government in No Child Left Behind for various subgroups of students who have
special learning needs. Gresham Arthur Academy is to be congratulated for having met AYP in 2008-
2009, 2009-2010, and 2010-2011. The school does not have significant numbers of students who require
special education or who are migrant, limited English proficient, or economically disadvantaged, so data
are not presented on the Oregon Department of Education website for students in these groups. The
only subgroup with sufficient numbers to report in terms of OAKS assessment results in 2011-2012 were
Economically Disadvantaged students.

OAKS Assessment Results 2011-2012
Economically Disadvantaged

Meets or Exceeds

Gresham Arthur

Gresham Barlow

State of Oregon

Benchmark in Reading Academy District
Grade 3 50% 50% 59%
Grade 4 92% 62% 64%
Grade 5 83% 51% 58%

Meets or Exceeds in

Gresham Arthur

Gresham Barlow

State of Oregon

Mathematics Academy District
Grade 3 83% 49% 53%
Grade 4 Not reporting 55%
Grade 5 83% 39% 47%

The same trends characterize the achievement trends of Economically Disadvantaged students at Arthur
Academy as those of the Total Population of students. When compared to district and state

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

13



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

achievement of students in the same subcategory in 2011-2012, students at Gresham Arthur Academy
significantly outperform those other students except for those in Grade 3 Reading.

4.2 Highly Qualified Compliance Rating: Exceeding
Do staff members teaching core academic subjects meet the requirements for "highly
qualified"?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e 2011-2012 Oregon Report Card
e 2011-2012 Annual Report
e List of teacher names with license numbers and expiration dates

Definition of Highly Qualified Teacher — The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 requires all teachers in
core academic subjects to be highly qualified in the areas of teaching assignments. Teachers are
considered to be highly qualified if they 1) have a bachelor’s degree; 2) have a full state certification;
and 3) have demonstrated subject- matter competence in the area(s) taught.

All members of the teaching staff at Gresham Arthur Academy are highly qualified and have the
appropriate TSPC certification. There are no teachers with a provisional or emergency license. In
addition, according to the principal, 85.7% of the teachers had master’s degrees in 2012-13. The school
administrator is charter school registered and currently completing an administrative licensure program.
Her current charter school certificate expires 9/18/15.

4.3.a English Language Learners — Programs Rating: Meeting

Does the charter school implement appropriate practices in providing programs to English
Language Learners (ELL)?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook
o Arthur Academy ELL Plan

Oregon Administrative Rule 581-0210-0046(8) requires public charter schools to (1) develop and
implement a plan for identifying students whose primary language is other than English; and (2) provide
those students with “appropriate programs” until they are able to effectively participate in regular
classroom instruction. In essence, a charter school must provide an English Language Learner with
instruction to improve English proficiency and provide access to academic content. ELL students must
also be assessed annually in English for proficiency (ELPA) in reading, writing, speaking, and listening.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

14



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

All identified English language learners participate in ELPA annually as part of the Oregon State
Assessments, including those whose parents have waived services until they are able to be exited from
the program as proficient based on approved exit criteria. Students who are on monitor status,
however, do not participate in ELPA.

At this time Gresham Arthur Academy has an 8-page ELL plan that includes the following sections:

1. Identification of students with primary language other than English
2. Assessment of ELL students

3. Instructional program and goals

4. Reassessment, reclassifying and exiting ELL students

5. Equal access to other charter school programs

The principal appears to be well aware of the school’s responsibilities regarding the provision of a high
quality program for its ELL students. The 4™ grade teacher, who is ESL endorsed, currently provides
services through a “push in model” in addition to a language program the students experience as part of
their regular school day.

The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area rather than an “Exceeding” because of the small
number of ESL students served by Gresham Arthur Academy. In addition, those ESL students are at
similarly high levels of language proficiency levels.

4.3.b English Language Learners — Monitoring Progress Rating: Exceeding
Does the charter school work to assess ELL students and monitor their progress so that English
Language Learners (ELL) can succeed in the charter school program?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e Arthur Academy ELL Plan
e Current ELL Student List/ELPA Scores

The Oregon School Report Card for 2011-2012 reports 153 students enrolled at Gresham Arthur
Academy with ELL enroliment at 4.2%. In its 2012-2014 ELL Plan, the Gresham Barlow School District
reported 1,287 ELL students enrolled in December 2011, comprising 11% of the district’s total
population.

The school has 9 ELL students at generally higher levels of English language proficiency (Levels 4 and 5
with the exception of one student at Level 3) with in-class instruction provided by the 4t grade teacher
who is ESL endorsed. The 4™ grade teacher’s regular class is taught by another teacher during the time
he goes to other classrooms to provide ELL services to students.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

15



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

The principal reports that all ELL students — 4 at Kindergarten, 2 at 1st grade, and 3 at 3™ grade - are
making good academic progress and that the in-class model is meeting their needs. Based on the annual
ELPA assessments, the principal reports that the in-class model is meeting student needs and that two
of the current students who came in at Level 3 moved to Level 4 within 1-2 years. Next year the school
will be serving only 3 students for ELL, all of whom are within one proficiency level of one another, so
they will be taught together.

Both the principal and the Business Manager indicated that the school was not currently receiving any
ELL funds through the State School Fund charter school formula because of the small nhumber of ELL
students and those who were enrolled were being served using an in-class model. If additional services
were needed, for either existing ELL students not making progress or new ones enrolling at lower levels
of English language proficiency, the school would most likely contract those services from the Gresham-
Barlow School District.

It should also be noted that because of their primary focus on Direct Instruction and Mastery Learning,
staff at Gresham Arthur Academy are constantly engaged in the ongoing assessment of student learning,
including both ELL and Special Education students. The “Levels of Intervention” employed when a
student is not making academic progress are spelled out in detail for all Gresham Arthur Academy
teachers. The four levels range from in-class intervention in a whole group setting, to a “push in”
intervention with an additional person to provide assistance, to small group supplemental instruction, to
a student’s reassignment to small group instruction for a pullout approach. These interventions also
apply to any ELL student who is struggling academically and provide more immediately useful
assessment information about student skills beyond the annual ELPA assessment required for ELLs by
the state of Oregon.

4.4 Special Education Delivery of Services Rating: Exceeding
Are regulatory guidelines implemented for IDEA-eligible students so that sponsoring districts

take responsibility for providing special education to charter school students? To what extent
are regulatory guidelines implemented for Section 504-eligible students?

Evidence:
e Student Assistance Team: SAT Process Evaluation and Service Team Packet
e SAT Referral Letter: 2012-2013
e Student Access 504 Packet (ODE Publication)

The charter school law in Oregon changed in June 2011 to require Special Education Services to be
provided by a charter school’s sponsoring school district beginning with the 2011-2012 school year. As a
result, the special education staff of the Gresham Barlow School District now has legal responsibility to
provide services to any special needs students enrolled at the Gresham Arthur Academy. The 2012
Parent Student Handbook makes a clear statement that services will be provided for those students
needing special education assistance, and the school’s resource materials include procedures for the

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

16



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

provision of special education and 504 services.

Currently, special education referrals are based on student response to the four levels of prescribed
interventions (see 4.3). If, despite the full range of interventions, a student is still not academically
successful, then Gresham Arthur Academy initiates contact with the Gresham Barlow School District for
student assessment and additional support. Currently the school has 6 students on Individualized
Education Plans (IEPs) for Speech who meet with a speech language itinerant each week who is provided
by GBSD to deliver specialized instruction.

Both the principal and Program Director indicated that their working relationship with the Gresham
Barlow School District regarding support services for Special Education students is highly collaborative
and focused on meeting student needs. They indicated that there had been no parent complaints or
special education issues raised by parents with IEP or special needs students attending Gresham Arthur
Academy.

4.5 Free/Reduced Price Lunch Rating: Meeting
Does the school follow federal guidelines for identifying students for program eligibility and
for safeguarding student privacy?

Evidence:
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook
e [nterview with principal/Program Director
e QOregon Department of Education website

Currently a hot lunch is delivered daily to students at Gresham Arthur Academy by the Gresham-Barlow
School District. Information about Free/Reduced Price Lunch is provided in the enrollment packet for all
families who apply for admission to the Gresham Arthur Academy. In addition, the 2012 Parent Student
Handbook includes information regarding the process to determine if a family qualifies for Free and
Reduced Lunch. The CSS interviewer noted the following statement in the Handbook:

“Our school achievement is judged in part based on the information provided by the
free and reduced lunch applications. Please complete a free and reduced application
even if you are not interested in free or reduced lunch for your child. We want everyone
who qualifies to increase our percentage if possible to counter naysayers who question
our achievement.”

When the CSS interviewer questioned the principal and Program Director regarding the intent of this
statement, the response was “People attack our achievement record and say we don’t have the same
SES (Socio Economic Status) as they do. We want to make sure we don’t miss any who qualify so that
our free and reduced numbers are as high as possible.” Although this is an understandable response to
criticism of the school’s high academic success rate, CSS evaluators recommend that the Free and
Reduced Lunch statement be reworded in the Parent Handbook to communicate a positive message
about making sure that resources are provided to those who need them. In addition, office staff

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

17



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

should follow up with all enrolling parents regarding the Free and Reduced Lunch program and its
importance to families to ensure that all who are eligible know how to apply if they so choose.

In 2012-2013 Gresham Arthur Academy reported to the Oregon Department of Education that 48 of its
students were eligible for Free Lunch and 19 students were eligible for Reduced Lunch or a total of 43%
of its student enrollment of 156. This compares to 54.7% reported for the Gresham Barlow School
District as a whole.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (“Meeting” rating) or not in compliance (“Not Meeting” rating) with this requirement.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

18



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

5.0 STATE ACCOUNTABILITY

5.1 Non-Discriminatory Practices Rating: Exceeding

Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in
regard to student access to programs and staff hiring?

Evidence:
e 2012 Employee Handbook
e [nterview with Principal/Program Director
e Business Manager for Mastery Learning Institute

The Mastery Learning Institute, which functions as a non-profit Board for all six of the Arthur Academies
in the Portland area, charges each Arthur Academy a fee to provide both business and human resource
services. Those fees pay the salary and benefits for the Business/HR Manager, an Executive Director and
a part time bookkeeper.

The Institute, whose seven members have the legal responsibility to ensure that the six Arthur
Academies comply with all state and federal laws regarding non-discriminatory practices, has written
policies and a Staff Handbook to ensure that the students and staff at Gresham Arthur Academy are
treated fairly and according to the requirements of the law.

There is an elevator across from the 5" grade classroom to ensure ADA student or staff access to the
second floor of Mountain View Christian Church, the current facility.

5.2.a Curriculum — Standards Rating: Exceeding

Does the content of the curriculum meet Oregon state standards?

Evidence:
e Arthur Academy Model of Instruction
e [nterview with Principal/Program Director
e MLl 2012-2013 General Handbook and Policies

The Mastery Learning Institute has developed a general handbook for the six Arthur Academies to use
that details policies and procedures to be followed by all staff. The 2012-2013 Handbook describes the
curriculum and instruction model at Arthur Academies as follows:

This model is based on the belief that a powerful way of teaching exists that is not being
utilized in most schools, and therefore our charter schools offer it as a choice. This kind
of teaching is called Direct Instruction (DI). Direct Instruction is the name of a series of
programs for teaching reading, language arts and math in grades K-6 where all learning
is very incremental so that students can be successful in mastering everything that is
taught as they progress through the programs. It starts with well-designed curriculum

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

19



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

materials and follows through with exact plans for how all lessons are presented and
communicated.

DI curriculum materials break down all general objectives into very small activities
within each lesson. These activities are then very carefully sequenced so that they can
be easily learned, mastered and gradually accumulated towards larger objectives. The
activities are presented to children in very exacting, interactive ways so that children are
motivated and so that they all will learn. This model is academically focused right from
the beginning, in kindergarten. It is based on the belief that academic learning can be
highly motivating by itself when taught clearly and systematically. It has been observed
that children gain empowerment and self-confidence when they learn academic skills
and knowledge in these programs.

All of the Arthur Academy Charter Schools use this incremental, mastery learning approach for teaching
reading, math and language development with pre-planned lessons at each grade level that include
assessments tied to Oregon state standards. As a result, students are constantly being tested in terms of
the knowledge and skills required to be successful on Oregon state assessments (OAKS). The school’s
focus on early literacy and the fundamentals of math in grades K-5 has resulted in percentages of
students meeting or exceeding benchmark in grades 3-5 in both reading and math that exceed student
performance at both the district and state level.

The materials generated at one of the six professional development days for Gresham Arthur Academy
teachers scheduled in 2012-2013 also demonstrate this attention to Oregon state standards. Math
teachers, for example, were asked to “bring the state standards in math and 5 copies of a project to
share, along with 5 copies of an enrichment activity to share and to prepare an upcoming reading or
math lesson to teach to the group.” Classroom observations conducted by a CSS evaluator in May 2013
indicated that students were engaged in highly academic, focused lessons. According to the Program
Director, “Our program is very structured in terms of praise for successful responses (3:1 ratio). 10
responses per minute is the goal. This is why our students outscore and out behave those in other
programs. 92% of our 4™ graders are passing reading/math and at Grade 3 there are 83% who are
passing reading and 86% passing math on OAKS. Our students are attending and participating at a level
well beyond those at other schools.”

5.2.b Curriculum — Assessment Rating: Exceeding

To what extent is the charter school conducting valid assessments of student performance
consistent with Oregon state standards?

Evidence:
e Placement Test Results K-4
e Overview of assessments aligned with Reading Mastery and Connecting Math Concepts
e levels of Intervention: Arthur Academy

The curriculum at Gresham Arthur Academy is aligned to state standards and student performance on

Portland State University | 20
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

both state and local tests reflect that focus. In addition to OAKS testing, the school administers the
Stanford Binet to students in grades K-2 and additional placement tests in Grades K-4. Most important is
the integral nature of assessment as it pertains to the Direct Instruction method that is fundamental to
the Arthur Academy model: Arthur Academies are based on the concept of ongoing assessment as the
essential component of daily instruction. Students are being assessed in terms of their mastery of
essential skills on an ongoing basis.

The materials provided to CSS evaluators for the site visit describe assessment practices as follows:

“The Direct Instruction curricula that we use for the subjects of reading, math, spelling
and writing all have assessments built in. Reading Mastery has an assessment every five
lessons in kinder. In the first grade we have benchmark tests every 20 lessons, and in
grades 2-5 we have a test every ten lessons.

Our math curriculum, Connecting Math Concepts, has a formal assessment every ten
lessons for all grades.

Here at Arthur Academy we believe every answer that a student gives is an assessment.
Our students are expected to answer with a choral response ten times per minute. We
also do individual turns. We call on those students that we need more data on and
students who are non-volunteers. This way we check for understanding with the
students who need it most.

Every student interaction can be counted as an assessment.”

5.3 Distinctive Teaching Techniques Rating: Exceeding

To what extent is the charter school implementing distinctive instructional practices as
outlined in their contract with the sponsoring district?

Evidence:
e |nitial Charter School Agreement between GBSD and Mastery Learning Institute dated 9/6/2007
for five year period ending June 30, 2013
e  Charter School Renewal dated April 2012 for 2013- 2018
e 2012 Parent Student Handbook
e (Classroom Observations
o Arthur Academy: Model of Instruction

According to the principal, Direct Instruction takes up 80% of the school day. In addition, there are
“specials” such as music, p.e. and technology instruction that occur on a weekly basis. According to the
Arthur Academy Model of Instruction, “Direct instruction emphasizes well-developed and carefully
planned lessons designed around small learning increments and prescribed teaching tasks. The model is
academically focused beginning in kindergarten based on the belief that academic learning itself can be
highly motivating when taught clearly and systematically. Activities are carefully sequenced so that they
can be easily learned, mastered and gradually accumulated towards larger objectives.”

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

21



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

In the classrooms observed by a CSS evaluator in May 2013, the use of positive reinforcement and whole
class choral responses were extensive. Students were knowledgeable about classroom routines and the
procedures inherent in the instructional model, all participating when prompted. Students were well-
behaved and responded to teacher direction whether regarding classroom procedures (lining up for
lunch or putting away notebooks) or instruction (“Answer when | say ‘everybody’”).

The school’s website and its Parent Student and Staff Handbook all describe the Direct Instruction model
so that parents are informed as to the specifics of this instructional model. With an 80% retention rate
and high academic test scores, it is clear that the students and parents of Arthur Academy support this
approach to teaching and learning.

5.4 School Improvement and Staff Development Plans Rating: Meeting
Does the charter school develop school improvement goals and align staff development
strategies to achieve them?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e Arthur Academy Summer Training Schedule 2012
e Arthur Academy PD DAY agendas for September 20, 2012, January 22 and March 18, 2013
e Arthur Academy Staff Meeting agendas 8/30/12 — 5/13/13

In the materials collected for the CSS site visit, the principal included agendas for three of the six
professional development days scheduled throughout the school year for Gresham Arthur Academy
teachers as well as information regarding the annual ten-day summer training held for teachers across
all six Arthur Academies.

In general, professional development occurs for all teachers in the Arthur Academies at a common site.
The six teachers per grade level meet together to develop curriculum and work collaboratively on areas
such as reading strategies, writing, spelling, math, classroom management, or discipline policies.

The agendas from September 20, 2012, January 22, 2013 and March 18, 2013 show a) grade level
meetings cross Academy and b) math training, for example, by level. Teachers were asked to bring
“state standards” and 5 copies of a project to share, 5 copies of an enrichment activity to share and to
prepare an upcoming reading or math lesson to teach to the group.

In addition, there are Staff Meetings held at Gresham Arthur Academy once a month. The agendas from
8/30/12 — 5/13/13 were provided to document the types of issues addressed as well as the close
working relationship that exists among the staff at this small school.

Gresham Arthur Academy annually reviews its overall school program and sets goals accordingly. The
school improvement initiatives for 2012-13 included an additional 30 minutes of math instruction
aligned to the Core Standards; additional grade level meetings to design lesson plans; an additional 15

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

22



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

minutes per day of math facts practice; and piloting a new Direct Instruction math curriculum in 3 g™
and 5" grades to better align instruction with the Core Standards.
5.5 Licensure of Charter School Staff Rating: Exceeding

Is the charter school compliant with Oregon statutes and charter agreements regarding
teacher licensure and registration?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e Teacher Licensure Spreadsheet

All teachers at Gresham Arthur Academy are all highly qualified and have the appropriate TSPC
certification. There are no teachers with a provisional or emergency license. The current school
administrator is charter school registered and currently completing a Master’s Degree program. Her
current charter school certificate expires 9/18/15.

5.6 Teacher Evaluation Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and sponsoring school district policy
regarding teacher performance evaluation, including the requirements of SB 290 if teachers
are school district employees?

Evidence:
e Sample Teacher Evaluation 2012-2013
e Technical Assistance Form for ARTHUR ACADEMY Teachers Requiring Support
e [nterview with Principal/Program Director
e Interview with MLI Board Chair
e MLl 2012-2013 General Handbook and Policies

As noted earlier, MLI charges each Arthur Academy a fee to provide both business and human resource
services. Those fees pay the salary and benefits for the Business/HR Manager, an Executive Director and
a part time bookkeeper. Personnel policies, including the process and forms used for annual teacher and
administrator evaluations, are generated by Mastery Learning Institute, the non-profit Board that
oversees all six of the Arthur Academies in the Portland area. All Gresham Arthur Academy staff are MLI
employees, not Gresham-Barlow’s, and there is no collective bargaining unit involved in establishing
salaries, benefits or evaluation procedures.

According to the MLI Board Chair, there have been three principals at Gresham Arthur Academy in the
past three years. When the CSS evaluator inquired as to the reason for such high turnover, the Board
Chair indicated that MLI had not been involved in hiring or terminating principals in the past so the
Board was not clear as to the problem. The Board Chair also shared concerns about high teacher
turnover in the Arthur Academies in the past. The principal indicated that at the end of 2012-2013 one

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

23



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

teacher was terminated at Gresham Arthur Academy and one long time teacher went on leave out of a
staff of 8.

Because the Board felt uninvolved and uninformed, Board members recently developed a new policy
giving the Board more of a role when there is a termination. If there are performance issues, there now
has to be a plan for improvement over a three-month period with the teacher or administrator being
given the opportunity to correct problems before termination. According to the 2012-2013 MLI General
Handbook (p. 43), the following now applies:

Teacher Termination [Adopted by MLI Board September 27, 2012]. Before a teacher is
terminated, the principal must notify the teacher in writing indicating that the teacher’s
performance has been below expected standards and indicating that improvement in
teacher performance must be made for continued employment. When notifying the
teacher, the principal must involve the Executive Director in the review of performance
process for that teacher. The Executive Director must participate in the evaluation
meeting where the principal identifies to the teacher the improvements that are the
conditions for continued employment.

The recommendation is that teachers be notified as soon in the year as possible that
their performance has been below expected standards, rather than waiting to the end
of the school year. The principal must give the teacher at least 3 coaching visits to help
the teacher meet the conditions for employment over a period of at least 1 month
before termination can occur. The Executive Director may participate in any of the
coaching visits. The final termination interview of a teacher must include the Executive
Director.

The Executive Director must report on the reasons for mid-year termination of a teacher
to the full MLI board. The MLI board may request reporting on the reasons for end-of-
year non-renewal of teachers. In cases where children are being harmed or other
exigent circumstances, the Executive Director may intervene and remove a teacher with
less process.

School Principal Termination [Adopted by MLI Board May 24, 2012] Before a School
Manager is terminated, the Executive Director must notify the manager in writing
indicating that the manager’s performance has been below expected standards and
indicating that improvement in manager performance must be made for continued
employment. When notifying the School Manager, the Executive Director must ask the
MLI Board to appoint at least one MLI Board member for the Executive Director to
involve in the Manager’s review of performance process. The appointed MLI Board
member(s) may participate in the evaluation meeting where the Executive Director
identifies to the School Manager the improvements that are the conditions for
continued employment or the Executive Director may report the meeting to the Board
representative(s).

The Executive Director must give the Manager at least 3 coaching visits to help the
manager meet the conditions for employment over a period of at least 3 months before
termination can occur. The appointed Board representative(s) may participate in any of

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

24



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

the coaching visits. The final termination interview of a Manager must include the
Executive Director and the MLI Board representative(s).

The Executive Director must report on the reasons for termination of a Manager to the
full MLI board. In certain cases, the full board may take action that overrides any of the
above procedures.

In addition to the development of these new policies, MLI has also put in place a new leadership model
for 2013-2014. The current Program Director will become a part time Executive Director with some
administrative duties being assigned to Arthur Academy site principals for next year. Principals will
receive an additional stipend for their extra duties. The Board Chair was optimistic that the new model
will work because the six principals helped design it.

Given the changes in leadership over the past several years, and a new termination procedure, CSS
evaluators recommend that the new Executive Director work with principals to clearly define the
teacher and administrator evaluation process to make sure that staff are aware of performance
standards and timelines. In addition, an explanation to staff and parents as to which duties will be
handled by the Executive Director and which ones are the responsibility of school principals will also
be important so that all stakeholders feel well informed.

CSS evaluators also recommend that in addition to the termination policies developed by the MLI
Board in 2012-2013, that the Board adopt policy that defines the standards and expectations it sets
for teachers/administrators as well as the importance of regular and high quality performance
evaluation.

5.7 Screening and Hiring Practices Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and school district policy regarding
criminal background checks?

Evidence:
e Interview with Principal and Program Coordinator
e Sample Background Check on Individual
e Interview with Business Manager for Mastery Learning Institute

All criminal records checks are conducted for all six Arthur Academies by staff from the Mastery
Learning Institute. All volunteers also undergo a background check through the HR/Business Director for
MLI who keeps all records centrally at MLI’s Portland office.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (“Meeting” rating) or not in compliance (“Not Meeting” rating) with this requirement.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

25



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

5.8 Employee Relations Rating: Exceeding
Has the charter school employed generally acceptable employee relations practices including
the provision of professional development plans?

Evidence:
e 2012 Employee Handbook
e Arthur Academy Staff Meeting agendas 8/30/12 — 5/13/13
e Interview with Principal/Program Director
e Interview with MLI Board Chair

The six Arthur Academies function as one school when it comes to staff training. Once a month, all the
Kindergarten teachers, for example, get together to work on common issues related to curriculum,
instruction or assessment. Principals are in every classroom, every day and work closely with their
teachers in a “hands-on” model that is highly collaborative in nature.

In addition, the six principals/managers work closely together and with the Executive Director hired by
Mastery Learning Institute to oversee operations. They meet 3-4 times a month, depending on need.
When asked where she goes if she needs help, the principal at Gresham Arthur Academy immediately
responded, “the Executive Director.” When asked if she felt she had adequate support, as 2012-2013
was her first year as school principal, she was clear on that point as well. “Yes,” was the unequivocal
response.

Salaries and benefits for Arthur Academy staff are lower than salaries elsewhere. Teachers and
administrators do participate in PERS and receive health insurance through Health Net that pays 50% of
all costs. In addition, staff members receive $200 per month for Flex Card medical expenses to offset
costs.

The Board Chair indicated that MLI was applying to increase teacher salaries for 2013-2014, something
the Board had not been able to do in previous years. “Teachers are happy now. We were able to give
them a 4% raise for next year,” she said. She felt that the close working relationships among Arthur
Academy staff, exemplary student achievement data, the new Leadership Model with a new Executive
Director, and a salary increase were all indicators of a great school year to come in 2013-2014. The staff
at the Gresham Arthur Academy should feel connected and supported by a larger organization.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

26



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

6.0 FISCAL PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

6.1 Accounting Rating: Exceeding

Are the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) being implemented?

Evidence:
e Interview with Business Manager for Mastery Learning Institute
e Financial Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e MLl Financial Report June 30, 2012
e Management Letter, June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e 2012-2013 and 2013-2014 Gresham Arthur Academy Budget

Gresham Arthur Academy, through MLI, contracts with an independent accounting firm (Pauly and
Rogers) to conduct their annual audit of the financial statements, pursuant to ORS 297.405 to 297.555,
ORS 297.990 and ORS 338. The general timeframe is to conduct the audit in May of a given year and
issue findings in August of that same year on the prior year’s budget. The principal provided a copy of
the 2011-2012 audit and auditors are expected to deliver the results of the 2012-2013 school year audit
by October 2013. Results will be shared with the Gresham Barlow School Board as part of its own fiscal
review.

The Gresham Arthur Academy contracts with MLI to conduct basic fiscal operations at the school such as
preparing payroll, overseeing accounts receivable, writing checks, etc. According to the HR/Business
Manager, the firm has consistently found that Arthur Academies are operating in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and have complied with other applicable
governmental accounting requirements based on the information provided and documents reviewed.

Board minutes provide evidence that monthly financial statements and cash flow projections are
prepared and shared with the MLl and Gresham Barlow Boards of Directors. MLI prepares regular
financial statements as well as a proposed budget for the Gresham Barlow School Board for review.
Financial assumptions are reviewed and all revenue associated with enrollment is adjusted accordingly.

6.2 Internal Controls Assessment Rating: Nearly Meeting
Does the school have evidence of effective operational procedures and internal controls?

Evidence:
e Interview with Business Manager for Mastery Learning Institute
e Financial Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e Management Letter, June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e 2012-2013 and 2013-2014 Gresham Arthur Academy Budget

Pauly and Rogers noted significant deficiencies in internal controls in 2010-2011 and 2011-2012 in its
management letter of September 17, 2012:

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

27



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

1. The Academies use QuickBooks as the accounting software. QuickBooks is not
designed to segregate the financial activity of interrelated schools and may allow users
to modify transactions that might go undetected unless someone is regularly reviewing
the audit tracker and has determined it is working properly. We noticed through reading
the Board minutes that you determined the cost benefit outweighs the risk of using
QuickBooks. We recommend that someone who does not process transactions in
QuickBooks review the audit tracker regularly to ensure that it is working properly and
that there have been no unauthorized modifications.

2. During our audit, we noted that the segregation of duties relating to the banking and
accounts payable functions contains risk exposure, in that the Business Manager has
access to the check stock, unrestricted QuickBooks access, and is a check signer for
general services. This creates a risk that an unauthorized check could be processed and
not be detected in a reasonable time period. We recommend that these functions be
segregated. In addition, we recommend that the Board and Executive Director
continually monitor the financial activities of the schools to reduce the risk of lack of
segregation of duties.

When interviewed in May 2013, the Business Manager for the Mastery Learning Institute indicated that
the Arthur Academies were too small to either develop or purchase a different accounting software
practice. In fact, in a follow-up email dated August 8, 2013, she stated, “The board is aware of the risk of
using QuickBooks and has formally approved of its use. The CPA’s have informed us that regardless of
the board’s actions they will still make a note every year regarding it.” She also indicated that MLI was
developing a process in which the Director of Academics (a new position) will receive an audit report in
addition to the Executive Director.

The MLI 2012-2013 Handbook and Policies contains the following policy (p. 21):

The Charter School shall maintain separate QuickBooks files for each school site.
Directly, allocable costs shall be charged to each school site directly. Shared costs shall
be entered in a General Services QuickBooks account file maintained by the Business
Manager, and allocated to each school site based on student count or another
reasonable allocation monthly. The Executive Director shall review allocating journal
entries and the General Services account file.

As to the segregation of duties issue, the Business Manager indicated in her interview that, “We do
follow our financial policies. Our internal controls are good. | don’t touch deposits. When money is
counted, it is counted at the school first and then by me so it happens twice. We have a bookkeeper
now (since 2010) and she does the check runs. | approve them and then a Board member signs. Only the
principal handles petty cash.” In her August 8, 2013 follow-up email, she further elaborated:

Segregation of job duties is very difficult in this small office. However, we have a series
of procedures which mitigate some of the risks.

Bank Statements are opened, reviewed and signed by Executive Director. (The ED is

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

28



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

verifying that all check copies were signed by a authorized signer);

Bank Reconciliations are done by Business Manager and reviewed and signed by
Executive Director. (ED is verifying that they are balanced and done in a timely manner);

| can only sign the central office checks.| am not a signer on any of the schools
accounts. They have to be signed and approved by Executive Director the board;

Business Manager conducts first review/approval for invoices; Executive Director
conducts final approval on invoices and payments of those invoices.

As the Business Manager | have unrestricted access to checks as well as the Executive
Director. The bookkeeper does not. | have unrestricted access to QuickBooks because |
am the Administrator of QuickBooks.

The Business Manager also indicated that many of the fiscal policies contained in the 2012-2013 General
Handbook and Policies are being rewritten to account for the new leadership model (see Section 5.6). In
June 2013 the Business Manager position changed to Director of Operations and Finance. Instead of an
Executive Director, there will be a Director of Academics with the same level of authority as an Executive
Director. The financial policies will be changed to reflect these new positions, including any necessary
changes in internal control policies.

In concurrence with the report from the outside auditors, CSS evaluators will continue to note that
financial functions should be more carefully segregated, and that the Board of Directors for the Arthur
Academy and its Executive Director should carefully monitor financial activities to minimize the risk(s)
associated with this lack of separation of duties. In addition, the continued use of QuickBooks
accounting software should be reviewed as per the recommendation from the outside auditors.

6.3 Financial Reporting Rating: Meeting
Has the school presented financial statements including board-approved budgets, annual
audits, and interim financial statements that comply with financial reporting requirements
and their Charter?

Evidence:
e Financial Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e Management Letter, June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e 2012-2013 and 2013-2014 Gresham Arthur Academy Budget
e Charter School Annual Report 2011-2012

The Mastery Learning Institute’s charter with the Gresham Barlow School Board includes requirements
for an annually adopted budget and an annual audit of the school’s finances by a qualified municipal
firm. As noted earlier, MLI contracts with Pauly and Rogers for auditing services for all six Arthur

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

29



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Academies. Copies of the 2011-2012 adopted budget and the 2010-2012 and 2011-2012 audits were
provided for review by CSS evaluators. In addition, the school reports both its fiscal and achievement
data to the Gresham Barlow Board of Directors in an annual fall report that includes the results of the
prior year’s audit and financial statements that detail revenues, expenditures and investments.

According to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis document presented by Pauly and Rogers for
the year ended June 30, 2012, the school showed a decrease in its financial position during the year.
Total assets decreased from $420,837 to $373,279, of which $68,229 was capital assets, net of
depreciation. Total liabilities were $70,477. Total net assets decreased from $321,760 to $302,832 or
$18,928. Revenues came primarily from State School Fund revenues of $738,938 with other revenues
totaled at $14,574 for total revenues from all sources tallied at $753,512. Expenses for the year totaled
$772,440. The largest expenditures were for instructional costs, which totaled $520,269.

The school spent a total of $34,976 more than budgeted during 2011-2012 due primarily to increased
costs in the areas of training and professional development, and office and facility supplies. Enrollment
fluctuation was also a factor, according to the principal. The Gresham Arthur Academy Annual Report,
2011-2012 indicated a K-5 enrollment fall 2011 at 172. Spring 2012 indicated 166 students and
September 2012 projected 115 returning students with a waiting list.

Since a substantial portion of operations funding for Gresham Arthur Academy is received from the
State of Oregon through the Gresham-Barlow School District based on its quarterly enrollment counts,
any fluctuation can cause increases or decreases in revenue. The 80% retention rate reported by the
school and the waiting lists of students at almost all grade levels augur well for long-term financial
stability for the school. Increased costs, changes in enrollment, and the unpredictability of school
funding in Oregon, however, will always result in some budgetary variation.

6.4 Response to Fiscal Crisis Rating: Meeting
Has the school prepared contingency plans in response to fiscal instability and financial
uncertainties related to school funding as well as charter school legislation?

Evidence:
e Interview with Business Manager for Mastery Learning Institute
e Interview with Board Chair for Master Learning
e 2013-2014 Adopted Budget

After reviewing the 2013-2014 adopted budget, the CSS evaluator had questions regarding 1) the
amount of the budgeted contingency, 2) budgeted management fees, 3) reference to a loan of $265,656
in the prior year’s management letter and 4) a budgeted expenditure for tuition expense. In addition, 5)
the Business Manager’s assessment of the overall fiscal stability of Gresham Arthur Academy was also
requested.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

30



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

1. The $7,710 budgeted contingency for Gresham Arthur Academy for 2013-2014 seemed low since the
prior year’s amount was budgeted at $14,748. The Business Manager indicated that there was an
additional “cushion” available through MLI if the school needed additional contingency funds. She
explained that because Gresham Arthur Academy when it opened was able to use the existing Arthur
Academy management structure and its previously-developed curriculum and materials, the school’s
initial start up costs were low. Low facility costs were also cited as a factor in keeping operating costs
down. As a result, Gresham Arthur Academy had $500,000 left over as “surplus” from the initial three-
year planning grant awarded the school by the State of Oregon beginning in 2006-2007. This “cushion,”
which is available for unrestricted use, is now $230,000 and can be accessed by the MLI Board, the
Business Manager or the Executive Director if needed.

2. Gresham Arthur Academy pays for oversight operations through a line item entitled “Arthur Academy
— General Services.” These funds are primarily used to pay administrative costs, payroll and related
expenses. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, $592,973 was paid to Arthur Academy — General
Service. It was noted that the amount of the management fees budgeted to pay for fiscal and human
resource services and for an Executive Director is reduced in 2013-2014 from the prior year. MLI had
been charging each of the six Arthur Academies 7% of revenues based on total ADM across the six
schools, but this amount will be reduced to 5% in 2013-2014. Despite the increase in PERS costs from
19% in 2012-2013 to 27% in 2013-2014, next year’s budget is based on an anticipated increase in ADM
and a modest increase in the per pupil allocation from the State. And, since MLI only charges the six
Arthur Academies the amount required to break even, the costs for management services for the
coming year will be less than in the past.

3. According to the Business Manager, the loan referenced in the June 2012 Management Letter was
payable to Shore Bank and collateralized by the assets of all of the Arthur Academy charter schools. No
debt was recorded on Gresham Arthur Academy’s statement of Net Assets, as the loan proceeds were
being used and repaid by the other Academies, not Gresham. This loan has now been paid off.

4. The budgeted tuition expense is to pay for the coursework associated with the principal’s
administrative licensure program, a program that will be completed in 2013-2014.

5. The Business Manager for MLI indicated that the Gresham Arthur Academy was fiscally stable and
well managed and that the MLI Board had no fiscal concerns at the present time.

6.5 Insurance Rating: Meeting
Does the school hold current insurance policies for performance bonding and for buildings and

items in the contract?

Evidence:
e Certificate of Liability from Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co, Policy # PHPK 926829
e Interview with Business Manager, Mastery Learning Institute

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

31



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

MLI’s current insurance policy is detailed in a Certificate of Liability from Philadelphia Indemnity
Insurance Co, Policy # PHPK 926829 and covers all six Arthur Academies. The policy period extends from
10/1/12 — 10/1/13. $7,200 is budgeted for 2013-2014 to cover renewal costs during the coming school
year.

According to the Business Manager, there are currently no reports of litigation pending against Gresham
Arthur Academy and the board has not extended the faith and credit of the school to any third party or
entity.

NOTE: The school received a “Meeting” rating in this area, the highest rating possible. A school is either
in compliance (“Meeting” rating) or not in compliance (“Not Meeting” rating) with this requirement.

6.6 Site and Facilities Rating: Exceeding
Are all licenses, approvals, permits, and inspections current and procedures for corrective

actions and emergency plans in place?

Evidence:
e Arthur Academy original lease with Mountain View Christian Church for 9/1/2007-June 30, 2012.
e Renewal lease dated June 8, 2012 for July 1, 2012 — June 30, 2017.

The original facility lease was for five years (2007-2012) between Mountain View Christian Church and
Mastery Learning Institute on behalf of Gresham Arthur Academy. The recent lease renewal extends
from July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2017.

The rent reflected in the 2013-2014 budget is $8,000 per month beginning July 1, 2012 for an annual
amount of $96,000. The monthly payment will increase in each of the next five years to a high of $9,004
per month for the year ending June 30, 2017. The school also pays $700 per month for janitorial services
and grounds maintenance in addition to its lease payments.

As indicated earlier, there are no plans to seek a larger or different facility in order to expand the current
program at Gresham Arthur Academy. “We want to stay here forever,” said the principal in May 2013.
The Program Director also indicated when interviewed that the Gresham Arthur Academy has the best
facility and best working relationship with its landlord of any of the six Arthur Academies. In addition to
the classroom and office space being leased, the school has access to the downstairs area for large
group events, space for lunch and access to the kitchen if needed. The principal felt that the working
relationship with Mountain View Christian Church was very positive and highly collaborative.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

32



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

6.7 Health and Safety Rating: Exceeding
Are health, safety, and accessibility standards being met and is documentation being kept
current?

Evidence:
e NSLP (National School Lunch Program) Inspection Reports dated 9/14/12 and 1/19/13
e Fire drill records
e [nterview with principal/Program Director

The Oregon Safe Employment Act statute requires employers to provide each employee a place of
employment that is free from recognized hazards. In addition, the health and safety of students are
primary concerns. The principal of Gresham Arthur Academy makes every attempt to comply with all
state and federal requirements and staff members have participated in training for CPR, blood-born
pathogens, and first aid as required. Additional training in lock down procedures was being planned for
summer 2013.

MLI Board policies are in place to govern student health and safety issues and the 2012 Parent Student
Handbook outlines pick up and drop off procedures, medication issues and lock down procedures. The
principal indicated that there is fire drill once a month as well as regularly scheduled lock down and
earthquake drills. Emergency exits and escape routes are clearly marked in the building and once a year
there is a total facility inspection conducted by Mountain View Christian Church.

National School Lunch Program health inspection reports dated 9/14/12 and 1/19/13 indicate the
school’s lunch program is in compliance. The school contracts with Gresham Barlow School District for
Food Services provided on a daily basis.

Portland State University | 33
Center for Student Success



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

7.0 GOVERNANCE

7.1 Open Meeting Law Rating: Meeting
Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public meetings and student
records?
Evidence:

e MLl Board Training Agenda

e MLI 2012-2013 General Handbook and Policies/Arthur Academy

e [nterview with principal/Program Director

e Interview with MLI Business Manager
e Interview with MLI Board Chair

According to its 2012-2013 Handbook, the Board of Directors that governs the Arthur Academy Charter
Schools conducts its meetings in the MLI Administration Office on 13717 SE Division, Portland, Oregon
97236 on the third Thursday of each month. Meetings are posted on the web page and at each school
office.

Board policy states that the Board “will voluntarily adhere to Oregon’s public meetings law to the extent
possible and practical.” In addition, “All regular and special meetings of the Board will be open to the
public except that the chairman may call an executive session for consideration of those confidential
matters permitted by law to be discussed in closed session.”

“Citizens and other interested parties are welcome to attend meetings of the MLI Board. Board
meetings are meetings conducted in public but are not necessarily meetings for public participation. The
Board may allow public testimony at its meetings. In order to keep its deliberations efficient and
effective, the Board provides the opportunity to speak at such meetings in accordance with the
following procedures” (then specified). Additional policy is included regarding how to request special
services for the hearing impaired and how to bring forward an agenda item or complaint.

In addition to its regular meetings, an annual organizational meeting of the Board takes place each fall
to elect Board officers for the coming year and to establish the year's schedule of Board meetings.

The Gresham Arthur Academy principal posts the Board agenda on the bulletin board in the hallway so it
can easily be viewed by parents and staff. She also puts notice of the meetings in the weekly reminders
that go out electronically to parents. Principals and the MLI Business Manager attend the Board
meetings but parents and teachers usually do not. Sometimes there are guests such as parents or school
district representatives who attend. In order to increase the possibility that parents/staff of any of the
six Arthur Academies become more aware of MLI business operations, CSS evaluators recommend that
Board agendas and minutes be posted on the school’s website in order to increase communication
with Gresham Arthur Academy families and to ensure parents are aware of Board meeting times and
dates.

Student records are kept confidential.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

34



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

7.2 Fiduciary Responsibilities Rating: Meeting
Is the charter school meeting its fiduciary responsibilities?

Evidence:
e MLl Board policies
e Financial Audit for Year Ended June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e Management Letter, June 30, 2012, Pauly and Rogers
e 2012-2013 and 2013-2014 Gresham Arthur Academy Budget
e [nterview with the principal/Program Director
e Interview with the MLI Business Manager
e Interview with MLI Board Chair

The MLI Board Chair indicated that the Board adopted the 2013-2014 budget on June 9 and that the
Arthur Academies are “financially secure”. She indicated, “We budget conservatively and we were able
to give a salary increase to teachers despite PERS costs.” She also spoke to the efficiency of the current
organizational model in that having one Executive Director and centrally budgeted services to provide
fiscal and human resource oversight allowed the six Arthur Academy principals to spend their time in
classrooms and working with teachers rather than having to focus on administrative details.

According to the principal, class sizes of 25 allow the school to “break even,” but to have enough money
to support the “specials” (elective offerings) or technology, they need 30 students per class. Given that
the school is essentially full but has no plans to expand, additional opportunities for students must be
provided through fundraising. The GAAPO parent group (see 7.3 below) has been active in raising funds
for field trips, but CSS evaluators recommend the development of a long term strategic plan related to
fundraising goals and strategies so that the school can be assured of its future ability to offer field
trips and options such as artists-in-residence and guest speakers to students or expand its technology
options beyond the current 30 computers on site.

7.3 Board Stability Rating: Exceeding
Are the charter school leadership and Board of Directors stable and sustainable?

Evidence:
e MLI Board policies
e MLl Board Meeting Minutes 2012-2013
e GAAPCS Notebook
e Interview with MLI Board Chair

Gresham is the only one of the six districts sponsoring an Arthur Academy Charter School to require
them to have its own Board. As a result, the Gresham Arthur Academy Public Charter School Board,
which consists of two parents, one community member and the MLI Business Manager, meets twice a
year. At the upcoming June 4, 2013 meeting, the agenda was focused on Food Services.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

35



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

The MLI Board Chair did not understand why it was necessary to have a GAAPCS Board because in reality
it is the Mastery Learning Institute Board of Directors that functions as the Board for all six Arthur
Academies. It is the MLI Board that oversees the operations of the Gresham Arthur Academy and
develops Board policies and procedures to govern the six charter schools under its direction.

There are seven director positions on the MLI Board with one position currently vacant. As soon as the
Board hires an Executive Director for 2013-2014, it will turn its attention to filling this vacant position. In
addition, Gresham Arthur Academy has a parent group that functions like a PTA or Parent Advisory
called the GAAPO (Gresham Arthur Academy Parent Organization). This group meets once a month and
focuses primarily on fundraising for extracurricular field trips and transportation costs. During 2012-
2013 the group sponsored a Jogathon to support field trips and next year wants to raise enough money
to pay for a playground slab and basketball hoops for the students.

The Board appears stable and well aware of its duties relative to school oversight. In addition, the
parent organization is providing valuable resources to the school and students and meets regularly to
address needs and issues.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

36



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATIONS

Beyond the formal mission statement of Gresham Arthur Academy or the details of the Arthur Academy
model, the principal’s description of the goals of Gresham Arthur Academy were fairly straightforward:

Increase student learning and achievement

Increase choices

Meet individual student academic needs and interests
Utilize different and innovative learning methods
Provide opportunities in a small learning environment
Establish additional forms of accountability

Based on the data reviewed and information gathered by the CSS evaluator who visited the school in
May 2013, it would appear that these goals are being met. Gresham Arthur Academy is academically
focused, its students are successful and its parents appear to be pleased with their children’s progress.
Enrollment is stable and the school is financially secure. Apparently the Board of Directors of the
Gresham Barlow School District also feels positively about the school’s performance in that they recently
renewed the school’s charter for another five years, a testament to what the school has achieved in only
six short years. The MLI Board Chair summed up the school’s many successes this way:

Our program is stable; we are doing well. Kids are happy and upbeat and all of them are
reading at grade level. We are very happy with Gresham AA. We would really like it if
others would learn some lessons from us regarding our model, which we think would be
good for everyone. What we are doing with our students could benefit students
elsewhere.

Finally, CSS evaluators want to comment on the motto posted on the wall of the school office. All who
came there were admonished to

Pay attention, work hard, get smart, be proud

The students and staff at Gresham Arthur Academy clearly pay attention, work hard and get smart at
Gresham Arthur Academy. Based on their track record to date, they also need to BE PROUD. The
principal and staff are doing good work with students and the suggestions that follow are efforts to
“fine tune” what is already working well.

CSS evaluators offer the following recommendations:

1. Follow up with parents in fall 2013 to survey them regarding what information they want to see on
the school’s website. Get specific examples of communication “lapses” from their perspective and then
address those issues.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

37



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

2. Examine the websites of other charter schools to determine the type of information being shared
electronically with parents.

3. Develop a plan regarding the regular updating of the school’s website and establish expectations for
staff in terms of the timely notification of important events and information.

4. Analyze both instructional practices and assessment results in reading at both grades 3 and 5 to
determine practices contributing to student success or those in need of improvement.

5. Examine OAKS and other data to determine what overall changes in instructional practice/other
factors in grade 3 contributed to significant gains in both reading and mathematics scores from 2011-
2012 to 2012-2013.

6. CSS evaluators recommend that the Free and Reduced Lunch statement be reworded in the Parent
Handbook to communicate a positive message about making sure that resources are provided to those
who need them. In addition, office staff should follow up with all enrolling parents regarding the Free
and Reduced Lunch program and its importance to families to ensure that all who are eligible know how
to apply if they choose to.

7. CSS evaluators recommend that the new Executive Director work with principals to clearly define the
teacher and administrator evaluation process to make sure that staff are aware of performance
standards and timelines. In addition, an explanation to staff and parents as to which duties will be
handled by the Executive Director and which ones are the responsibility of school principals will also be
important so that all stakeholders feel well informed.

8. CSS evaluators also recommend that in addition to the termination policies developed by the MLI
Board in 2012-2013, that the Board adopt policy that defines the standards and expectations it sets for
teachers/administrators as well as the importance of regular and high quality performance evaluation.

9. In concurrence with the report from the outside auditors, CSS evaluators note that financial functions
should be more carefully segregated, and that the Board of Directors for the Arthur Academy and its
Executive Director should carefully monitor financial activities to minimize the risk(s) associated with
this lack of separation of duties. In addition, the continued use of QuickBooks accounting software
should be reviewed as per the recommendation from the outside auditors.

9. CSS evaluators recommend that Board agendas and minutes be posted on the school’s website in
order to increase communication with Gresham Arthur Academy families and to ensure parents are
aware of Board meeting times and dates.

10. CSS evaluators recommend the development of a long term strategic plan related to fundraising
goals and strategies so that the school can be assured of its future ability to offer field trips and options
such as artists-in-residence and guest speakers to students or expand its technology options beyond the
current 30 computers on site.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

38



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Summary of Findings

Exceeding
1.1 Goals Specific to Mission

1.2 Student Admissions & Conditions of Enroliment
2.1 Enrollment/Retention/Attendance

2.2 Parent Satisfaction

3.1 Student Achievement: Reading

3.2 Student Achievement: Math

3.3 Comparative Student Achievement
4.1 Student Achievement

4.2 Highly Qualified Compliance

4.3.b English Language Learners — Monitoring Progress
4.4 Special Education Delivery of Services
5.1 Non-Discriminatory Practices

5.2.a Curriculum — Standards

5.2.b Curriculum — Assessment

5.3 Distinctive Teaching Techniques

5.5 Licensure of Charter School Staff

5.8 Employee Relations

6.1 Accounting

6.6 Site and Facilities

6.7 Health and Safety

7.3 Board Stability

Meeting

4.3.a English Language Learners — Programs
4.5 Free/Reduced Price Lunch

5.4 School Improvement and Staff Development Plans
5.6 Teacher Evaluation

5.7 Screening and Hiring Practices

6.3 Financial Reporting

6.4 Response to Fiscal Crisis

6.5 Insurance

7.1 Open Meeting Law

7.2 Fiduciary Responsibilities

Nearly Meeting

6.2 Internal Controls Assessment

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

39



Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

APPENDIX A: Evaluation Team Biographies

Linda Jessell, MA
Director, Center for Student Success
Portland State University

Linda Jessell’s extensive background in public education in Oregon includes 40 years of work in schools,
school districts, and at the university level. Her work in higher education during the past six years has
included the assistant director position and subsequently the director position of the Center for Student
Success in the Graduate School of Education at Portland State University. The Center has specialized in
program evaluation, professional development, and other consultative services provided to schools and
school districts across the state. Program evaluation, under her leadership, has evolved into a mainstay
for the Center and has included charter school evaluations, grant evaluations, program evaluations, and
specific project evaluations. All evaluative projects have included commendations as well as
recommendations for program modifications and improvements.

Jessell’s work in K-12 schools included the following leadership positions: department chair, staff
development specialist, assistant principal, principal, director of secondary schools, and K-12 curriculum
director. More specifically, the key areas of focus for her work in schools included: high school
improvement, curriculum development and grade level alignment, curriculum alignment with state
content standards, teacher and administrator professional development, and school improvement
planning and implementation.

In 2005, Jessell’s work was recognized by the Business Education Compact and she was selected to
receive their annual Education Achievement Award.

Deborah Sommer, Ed.D.
Consultant, Center for Student Success
Portland State University

Deborah Sommer has a rich background in education of 40 years in public education; as a staff
development specialist, vice-principal, principal, curriculum director, school superintendent, university
faculty and consultant. Having worked in large and small school districts, suburban and rural schools, at
an ESD and at the university level, she has extensive experience in curriculum development,
performance evaluation and student assessment. A specialist in team building and conflict resolution,
contract negotiations and building parent and community support for schools, she was the recipient of
the Oregon Superintendent of the Year award in 2006 - Canby School District.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

40



APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
1.0 MISSION-SPECIFIC GOALS and ADMISSIONS & ENROLLMENT
1.1 Goals Specific to Has the charter school met its mission-specific goals as outlined in the contract with the School District?
Mission

The school has clearly The school has met all of The school has met some of | The school has not met its
exceeded its mission- its mission-specific goals its mission-specific goal(s) mission-specific goal(s) as
specific goal(s) as identified | as identified in the Charter | as identified in the Charter identified in the Charter
in the Charter Application Application and Contract. Application and Contract. Application and Contract.
and Contract.

1.2 Student Admissions & | Is there evidence that the charter school is following statutory and district guidelines regarding student

Conditions of
Enrollment

admission and enrollment?

The school follows
statutory and contractual
guidelines for student
admissions, including the
admission of special
populations, and exceeds
its enrollment projections.

The school follows
statutory guidelines for
student admissions,
including special
populations, and meets its
enrollment projections.

The school does not follow
statutory guidelines for
admission, including special
populations, and may or may
not meet enrollment
projections.

The school does not follow
statutory guidelines for
admission, including special
populations, and does not
meet enroliment projections.

© 2012 Portland State University, all rights reserved. This rubric may only be displayed, distributed, or reproduced in its exact, original form and shall include this copyright

notice. Editing, creating derivative works and adaptations, or selling this rubric is strictly prohibited. The use, distribution or reproduction of this rubric is intended for
educational and informational use only.

Portland State University | 41
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
2.0 OVERALL STUDENT SUCCESS
2.1 Enroliment/Retention/ | To what extent are students making academic progress as measured by enroliment/retention rates and
Attendance attendance?
Student retention rates are | Retention rates remain Retention rates vary from Retention rates and
increasing and enrollment steady and enroliment year to year. Student enrollment are declining.
is expanding. Attendance remains steady. Attendance | enrollment fluctuates Attendance data indicate
data indicate that high data indicate that above significantly from year to that low numbers of students
numbers of students are average numbers of year. Attendance data are attending 90% or more
attending 90% or more students are attending 90% | indicate that average school days.
school days. or more school days. numbers of students are
attending 90% or more
school days.
2.2 Parent Satisfaction To what extent do parent survey respondents indicate satisfaction with students' academic progress and the

educational program?

The school regularly surveys
parents as a means to
improve. A high proportion
of parent-respondents (66%
or more of the sample)
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress and the
educational program.

The school occasionally
surveys parents. A slight
majority of parent-
respondents (at least 50%)
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress or with
the educational program.

The school seldom asks for
parent input and/or less than
half of parent-respondents
indicate a high level of
satisfaction with students’
academic progress or the
educational program.

The school does not solicit
parent input and/or at least
half of the parent-
respondents indicate
dissatisfaction with students’
academic progress or the
educational program.

Portland State University | 42
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

3.0 LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

3.1 | Student Achievement: | Over time, has student achievement in Reading improved measurably?
Reading

Over time, student Over time, student Over time, student Over time, student
achievement at all grade | achievement overall has achievement overall is at or | achievement has consistently
levels has improved improved and remained at or | above state averages but been below state averages
measurably (or remained | above state averages in has not indicated consistent | and/or has not shown
high relative to state Reading. Trends in 3" grade | improvement in Reading. measurable improvement in
averages) in Reading for | reading proficiency and Trends in 3" grade reading Reading. Trends in 3" grade
students overall and key | student growth show some proficiency and student reading proficiency and
subgroups. Trends in 3" improvement over time. growth are inconsistent in student growth show decline
grade reading proficiency terms of improvement over over time.
and student growth show time.
consistent improvement
over time.

3.2 | Student Achievement: | Over time, has student achievement in Math improved measurably?

Math

Over time, student
achievement at all grade
levels has improved
measurably (or remained
high relative to state
averages) in Math for
students overall and ke)é
subgroups. Trends in 5
and 8" grade math
proficiency and student
growth show consistent
improvement over time.

Over time, student
achievement overall has
improved and remained at or
above state averages in
Math. Trends in 5th and 8"
grade math proficiency and
student growth show some
improvement over time.

Over time, student
achievement overall is at or
above state averages but
has not indicated consistent
improvement in Math.
Trends in 5th and 8" grade
math proficiency and student
growth are inconsistent in
terms of improvement over
time.

Over time, student

achievement has consistently

been below state averages
and/or has not shown
measurable improvement in
Math. Trends in 5th and 8"
grade math proficiency and
student growth decline over
time.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

43




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

3.3

Comparative Student
Achievement

How does the charter school's performance compare to the sponsoring school district and the state as a whole?

The school's performance
consistently outpaces the
sponsoring school district
and the state as a whole.

The school's performance
is better than either the
sponsoring school district
or the state as a whole.

The school's performance
is equivalent to the
sponsoring school district
and the state as a whole.

The school's performance is poor
relative to the sponsoring school
district and the state as a whole.

Portland State University | 44
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
4.0 FEDERAL ACCOUNTABILITY: STUDENT PERFORMANCE & PROGRAMS
Student Did the charter school meet Federal targets in math, reading, participation, attendance and for subgroups as
41 Achievement required by the interim accountability system approved through the ESEA waiver process for 20127
The school overall The school overall met The school overall met The school did not meet targets
exceeded targets in both | targets in both math and targets in reading or math. in either reading or math. The
reading and math. All reading. All student Most student subgroups school is rated “In Need of
student subgroups subgroups met targets for met targets, but the school Improvement” on the Oregon
exceeded targets for participation, academic did not meet all criteria in Report Card.
participation, academic status and growth. The either reading or math. The
status, and growth. The school is rated school is rated
school is rated “Satisfactory” on the “Satisfactory” on the
“Outstanding” on the Oregon Report Card. Oregon Report Card.
Oregon Report Card.
4.2 Highly Qualified Do staff members teaching core academic subjects meet the requirements for "highly qualified"?

Compliance

100% of teachers in core
subjects meet the federal
HQ requirements.

95% to 99% of staff are HQ
due to enroliment
fluctuation after the school
year began; there is a plan
of correction for each
teacher not HQ in a core
subject.

Less than 95% of core subject

teachers are HQ and/or there is

not a plan of correction to

address this deficiency for each

affected staff member.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

45




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
4.3.a | English Language Does the charter school implement appropriate practices in providing programs to English Language Learners
Learners - Programs | (ELL)?
Provides exemplary Provides appropriate Partial implementation of ELL students are not taught
programs that teach practices in providing appropriate practices in reading, writing and speaking
reading, speaking and programs that teach providing programs to help in English by qualified staff at
writing to ELL students in reading, speaking and ELL students overcome the charter school or district
English until they can writing in English until ELL | language barriers. Those level.
effectively participate in students can participate in | delivering instruction may
regular classroom regular classroom lack training and the amount
instruction. Instruction is instruction. Instruction is of instructional time provided
delivered by well-trained delivered by qualified for ELL students is
charter school or charter school or inadequate.
sponsoring district staff. sponsoring district staff.
English Language Does the charter school work to assess ELL students and monitor their progress so that they can succeed in the
4.3.p | Learners — charter school program?

Monitoring Progress

A well-developed plan is in
place to assess potential
ELL students and to
monitor their progress.
Students are exited from
the program only when
they meet state criteria.

A planisin place to
assess potential ELL
students, but the process
of monitoring their
progress and exiting
students could be
improved.

The process of assessing
potential ELL students,
monitoring ELL student
progress, or exiting students
is not clearly or consistently
defined.

There is no process to identify,
serve or exit ELL students
from the charter school
program.

Portland State University | 46
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

4.4

Special Education
Delivery of Services

Are regulatory guidelines implemented for IDEA-eligible students so that sponsoring districts take responsibility
for providing special education to charter school students? To what extent are regulatory guidelines
implemented for Section 504-eligible students?

An exemplary partnership
with the school district
exists to ensure that
students with disabilities
receive appropriate
services. Students’
progress toward meeting
their IEP goals is
monitored. Communication
between charter school
staff and district special
education staff is frequent
and ongoing.

A collaborative partnership
with the school districts
ensures that students with
disabilities receive
appropriate services.
Students’ progress toward
meeting their IEP goals is
monitored.
Communication between
charter school staff and
district special education
staff occurs regularly.

There is some degree of
monitoring of special
education students’ progress
toward meeting their IEP
goals. Communication
between charter school staff
and district special education
staff is sporadic.

There is little or no
collaboration with the school
district, limited monitoring of
special education students’
progress toward meeting IEP
goals, and little or no
communication between
charter school staff and district
special education staff.

4.5

Free/Reduced Price
Lunch

Does the school follow federal guidelines for identifying students for program eligibility and for safeguarding

student privacy?

Evidence that federal
guidelines are followed for
identifying students for
program eligibility and for
safeguarding student
privacy.

Insufficient evidence that
federal guidelines are followed
for identifying students for
program eligibility and for
safeguarding student privacy.

Portland State University | 47
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
5.0 STATE ACCOUNTABILITY
5.1 Non- Is the charter school complying with statutory guidelines for non-discriminatory practices in regard to student
Discriminatory access to programs and staff hiring?
Practices
There is evidence that policy | Procedures are in place to | Some procedures are in Procedures are not in
and procedures are in place | prevent discriminatory place to prevent place to prevent
to prevent discriminatory practices but evidence is discriminatory practices but discriminatory practices
practices regarding student not presented for all areas. | evidence is not presented and findings indicate that
access to programs as well and/or findings indicate that | discriminatory practices
as the recruitment, hiring, some discriminatory exist.
and promotion of staff. practices exist.
5.2.a | Curriculum - Does the content of the curriculum meet state standards?
Standards
Evidence exists that all Evidence exists that the Evidence exists that fewer There is insufficient
curriculum areas are fully core curriculum is fully than four curriculum areas evidence that curriculum
aligned with state standards. | aligned to state standards. | are fully aligned to state is aligned to state
standards. standards.
5.2.b | Curriculum - To what extent is the charter school conducting valid assessments of student performance consistent with
Assessment Oregon state standards?
Evidence exists that there is | Evidence exists that there | Academic improvement is not | No evidence exists that
a detailed plan for academic | is a plan for academic a consistent focus and the there is a plan for
improvement and the school | improvement and the school meets only some academic improvement
meets all content standards | school meets most of the content standards required by | and the school meets few
required by ORS 329.045. content standards required | ORS 329.045. Student or none of the content
Student assessment results | by ORS 329.045. Student | assessment results are not standards required by
are regularly reviewed and assessment results are reviewed on a systematic ORS 329.045. Student
instruction modified. reviewed on a systematic basis. assessment results are
basis. not regularly reviewed.

Portland State University | 48
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
5.3 Distinctive To what extent is the charter school implementing distinctive instructional practices as outlined in their
Teaching contract with the sponsoring district?
Techniques —
Charter Contract
Implemented in compliance Implemented with Modification of Significant modifications
with the Charter Agreement; | modifications implementation plan in are required to implement
no modifications required. process. as planned.
5.4 School Does the charter school develop school improvement goals and align staff development strategies to achieve
Improvement and | them?
Staff Development
Plans
Evidence exists that A SIP plan has been There is evidence that at least | There is insufficient
indicates goals of the SIP developed and is being one major component of the evidence that any
plan are being met. The plan | implemented. Staff plan is being implemented. components of the plan
has been collaboratively training is provided that Staff training may or may not are being implemented.
developed and submitted to | may help teachers meet be aligned with the SIP plan. Staff training is minimal
the district. Staff training is SIP goals. or non-existent.
aligned with SIP goals.
5.5 Licensure of Is the charter school compliant with Oregon statutes regarding teacher licensure, and registration and charter

Charter School
Staff

agreements?

More than 75 % of teachers
are licensed by TSPC and
100% registered by the state
prior to employment.

At least 50%

of the teachers are
licensed by TSPC and
100% are registered by
the state prior to
employment.

The school is seeking
restricted or emergency
licensure for less than 5% of
teachers to meet the
requirement of at least 50%
being properly licensed
through TSPC.

Less than 50% of
teachers are licensed
through TSPC. One or
more teachers has been
hired without the
appropriate licensure
and begun employment.

Portland State University | 49

Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
5.6 Teacher Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and sponsoring school district policy regarding
Evaluation teacher performance evaluation, including the requirements of SB 290 if teachers are school district
employees?
Written documents support a | Written documents support | All teachers are evaluated by There are few if any
rigorous process of performance evaluation an administrator in writing written expectations
performance evaluation that includes goal setting, based on school, department regarding teacher
including self-assessment, classroom observation, and grade level goals. performance.
goal setting around student and formative and Evaluation efforts are
achievement and growth, summative evaluation. incomplete or sporadic.
data collection and both
formative and summative
evaluation.
5.7 Screening and Is the charter school compliant with statutory guidance and school district policy regarding criminal
Hiring Practices background checks?
There is evidence that There is no evidence
criminal background that criminal background
checks were conducted for checks have been
all staff members and conducted for all staff.
appropriate adult
volunteers.
5.8 Employee Has the charter school employed generally acceptable employee relations practices including the provision of
Relations professional development plans?

Written documents support
customary employee
benefits including handbook,
insurance protections, and
right to form collective
bargaining group. Staff has
easy access to management
for addressing concerns and
75% of staff engaged in
some form of professional
development provided by the
school in the past year.

Written documents support
customary employee
benefits that includes
handbook on procedures,
leave policies, insurance
protection, and right to
form a collective
bargaining group. The
majority of members took
the opportunity to engage
in professional
development provided by
the school in the past year.

Written documents are unclear
regarding what are considered
customary employee benefits
such as insurance protection
or leave provisions. Less than
half the staff engaged in
professional development
provided by the school last
year.

Written documents do
not show customary
handbook information or
typical benefits and
protections for
employees such as
insurance or leave
provisions. Less than
one quarter of the staff
engaged in professional
development provided
by the school last year.

Portland State University | 50

Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting

6.0 FISCAL PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

6.1 | Accounting Are the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) being implemented?
Exemplary implementation Full implementation of Partial implementation of There is little, if any,
of Generally Accepted Generally Accepted Generally Accepted evidence that Generally
Accounting Principles in Accounting Principles in Accounting Principles in Accepted Accounting
maintaining accounting maintaining accounting maintaining accounting Principles are used in
records and preparing an records and preparing an records and preparing an maintaining accounting
annual audit. There is clear annual audit. There is annual audit. records.
evidence that any evidence that some Plans are underway to There are no plans
recommendations from the recommendations from the | respond to the underway to respond to
prior year's audit were prior year’s audit have been | recommendations in the the recommendations in
implemented and that the implemented. Discussion of | prior year's audit. The Board | the prior year's audit.
Board was fully informed of the prior year’s audit is may not be aware of any The Board was not
any recommended changes | documented in Board recommendations. aware of the audit or the
and received the auditor’s minutes. auditor’s
management letter. recommendations, if

any.
6.2 | Internal Controls Does the school have evidence of effective operational procedures and internal controls?

Assessment

The school has evidence of
written, effective operational
procedures and internal
controls. No significant
concerns were presented in
the most recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on internal
controls. All
recommendations from the
prior year’s audit have been
implemented.

The school has evidence
that it has effective
operational procedures and
internal controls. No
significant concerns have
been presented with the
most recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on
internal controls. Most
recommendations from the
prior year’s audit have been
implemented or are in the
process of being
implemented.

The school has evidence
that it is in the process of
developing or improving
operational procedures and
internal controls. The school
has presented significant
concerns with the most
recent auditor’s
management letter, Board
response, staff review
process or report on internal
controls.

The school does not
appear to have
operational procedures
and/or internal controls.
The school has
presented significant
concerns with the most
recent management
letter, Board response,
staff review process or
report on internal
controls.

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

51



APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
6.3 | Financial Reporting | Has the school presented financial statements including board-approved budgets, annual audits, and interim
financial statements that comply with financial reporting requirements and their Charter?
The school has presented The school has presented The school has not The school has not
quality financial statements quality financial statements | consistently presented presented quality
over the past two years, including board approved quality financial statements financial statements
including board approved budgets, annual audits, and | including board approved including board
budgets, annual audits, and | interim financial statements | budgets, annual audits, and | approved budgets,
interim financial statements that comply with financial interim financial statements annual audits, and
that comply with financial reporting requirements and | that comply with financial interim financial
reporting requirements and their Charter. reporting requirements and statements that comply
their Charter. The school is their Charter. with financial reporting
applying for OASBO requirements and their
(Oregon Association of Charter.
School Business Officials)
financial recognition.
6.4 | Responseto Fiscal | Has the school prepared contingency plans in response to fiscal instability and financial uncertainties related
Crisis to school funding as well as charter school legislation?
The school has prepared a The school does not
comprehensive contingency have a comprehensive
plan in case of fiscal contingency plan in case
instability and financial of fiscal instability and
uncertainties. Annual financial uncertainties.
fundraising goals are set There are no fundraising
and met. goals or they are not
met.
6.5 | Insurance Does the school hold current insurance policies for performance bonding and for buildings and items in the

contract?

The school holds current
insurance policies for
performance bonding and
for buildings and other
insurance as specified in
the Charter contract.

The school does not
hold current insurance
policies for performance
bonding and for
buildings.

Portland State University

Center for Student Success

52



APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
6.6 | Site and Facilities Are all licenses, approvals, permits, and inspections current and procedures for corrective actions and
emergency plans in place?
Evidence exists that all Evidence exists that all Evidence indicates that There is little, if any,
licenses, approvals, permits, | licenses, approvals, some licenses, approvals, evidence indicating that
and inspections are current. | permits, and inspections permits, and inspections are | licenses, approvals,
Corrective actions and are current. Procedures for | current. Procedures for permits, and inspections
emergency plans have been | corrective actions and corrective actions and are current. Procedures
successfully implemented. emergency plans are in emergency plans may or for corrective actions
place. may not be in place. and emergency plans
are not in place.
6.7 | Health and Safety Are health, safety, and accessibility standards being met and is documentation being kept current?

Evidence exists that health,
safety, and accessibility
standards have been
exceeded and all
documentation is current.

Evidence exists that health,
safety, and accessibility
standards have been met
and all documentation is
current.

Meets basic health, safety,
and accessibility standards
but evidence is lacking
regarding regularly
scheduled reports,
inspections, and monitoring
procedures.

Does not meet one or
more health, safety, or
accessibility standard(s).

Portland State University
Center for Student Success

53



APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency Exceeding Meeting Nearly Meeting Not Meeting
7.0 GOVERNANCE
7.1 Open Meeting Is the school in compliance with federal and state law regarding public meetings and student records?
Law
Exemplary compliance with Evidence indicates Evidence indicates There is little if any evidence
federal and state law compliance with federal and | compliance with some but indicating compliance with
concerning public meetings state law concerning public | not all federal and state law | federal and state law
and student records. meetings and student concerning public meetings concerning public meetings or
records. and/or student records. student records.
Fiduciary Is the charter school meeting its fiduciary responsibilities?

7.2

Responsibilities

The Board did not guarantee
any indebtedness on behalf of
the school or a third party
provider; there are no conflicts
of interests or full disclosure
with a legal rationale for
financial transactions. The
Board is involved in the inflow
and outflow of funds and
regularly reviews financial
statements. The Board always
engages other school and
community members in the
budget process. The annual
audit meets standards.

The Board did not
guarantee any
indebtedness on behalf of
the school or a third party
provider; there are no
conflicts of interest or full
disclosure with a legal
rationale for financial
transactions. The Board is
involved in the inflow and
outflow of funds and
reviews financial
statements. The Board
sometimes engages
parents and school staff in
the budget process. The
annual audit meets
standards.

The Board did not guarantee
any indebtedness on behalf
of the school or a third party
provider; there are no
conflicts of interest or full
disclosure with a legal
rationale for financial
transactions. The Board is
somewhat involved in the
inflow and outflow of funds
and reviews financial
statements. The Board
solely engages school
management in the budget
process. The annual audit
does not meet standard s.

Any of the following: The
Board guaranteed
indebtedness on behalf of the
school or a third party
provider; there are conflicts of
interest or no disclosure
including a legal rationale for
financial transactions. The
Board is not involved in the
inflow and outflow of funds
and there is little if any review
of financial statements. The
Board has limited
involvement in the budget
process. The annual audit
does not meet standards.

Portland State University | 54
Center for Student Success




APPENDIX B: Charter School Evaluation Rubric

Gresham Arthur Academy Charter School Evaluation Report - 2013

Competency

Exceeding

Meeting

Nearly Meeting

Not Meeting

7.3

Board Stability

Are the charter school leadership and Board of Directors stable and sustainable?

Business is completed at
regular business meetings;
board meetings are not
cancelled due to quorum
issues; the Board has no
vacancies or has an active
plan to fill any that exist. The
Board has not been in an
exigent state in the past year;
an orientation process for new
members has been
implemented; the Board
encourages, supports and
participates regularly in
training opportunities; the
Board is not involved in
litigation; there is no evidence
of an intent to revoke notice.

Not more than one meeting
per year is cancelled due to
quorum issues; the Board
has no vacancies; the
Board has not been in an
exigent state in the past
year; a written orientation
process for new members
is present; the Board
encourages and supports
training opportunities as
demonstrated through
attendance or budget
commitments; the Board is
not engaged in litigation;
there is no evidence of an
intent to revoke notice.

Not more than three
meetings per year are
cancelled due to quorum
issues; the Board has no
more than one vacancy; the
Board has not been in an
exigent state in the past
year; an orientation process
for new members is present
but not written; the Board
encourages training
opportunities but has no
supporting evidence that
training has occurred or that
new Board members are
being effectively recruited,;
the Board is not engaged in
litigation; there is no
evidence of an intent to
revoke notice.

More than three meetings per
year are cancelled due to
quorum issues; the Board has
more than one vacancy; the
Board has been in an exigent
state in the past year; an
orientation process for new
members is not present; the
Board does not engage in
training opportunities or
actively recruit to fill
vacancies; the Board is
engaged in litigation; the
school has received a notice
of intent to revoke.

educational and informational use only.

© 2012 Portland State University, all rights reserved. This rubric may only be displayed, distributed, or reproduced in its exact, original form and shall include this copyright
notice. Editing, creating derivative works and adaptations, or selling this rubric is strictly prohibited. The use, distribution or reproduction of this rubric is intended for

Portland State University | 55
Center for Student Success




GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
James Hiu
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 12 - Acceptance of a Financial Donation from Daimler Trucks North America
EXPLANATION: Gresham High School and Sam Barlow High School have been

offered a donation of $7,000 each from Daimler Trucks North
America, one of the world’s most successful automotive
companies. The Daimler Group is one of the biggest producers of
premium cars and the world’s biggest manufacturer of
commercial vehicles with a global reach. Donations are being
made available to our two comprehensive high schools to support
CTE - Career Technical Education efforts in our district.

Gresham High School intends to purchase a class set of Netbooks
for use in science classes, as well as enhancement of the Chrome
book mobile computer labs.

The plan at Sam Barlow High School is to purchase new and
updated textbooks, and much-needed computers within the CTE

department.
PRESENTER: James Hiu
SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS: None
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends acceptance of the Daimler
donation to Gresham High School and Sam Barlow High School.
REQUESTED ACTION: Moved to accept the two $7,000 donations from Daimler Trucks

North America for Gresham High School and Sam Barlow High
School to support Career Technical Education efforts in our
district.

JH:pkh:lc



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Jerry Jones
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 13 - Capital Construction Bond Citizens Accountability Committee
EXPLANATION: A draft Citizen Accountability Committee Charter was presented
for first reading at the September 5, 2013, board meeting with the

following explanation:

Resolution No. 1213-05 directed referral of a capital
construction bond measure to the November 5, 2013, election.
Chartering an accountability committee will assist the board in
monitoring the planning and progress of the proposed bond
program relative to voter-approved work scope, schedule, and
budget objectives.

The proposed ballot measure (Notice of Bond Measure) and
explanatory statement language was referred to the
Multnomah Elections Division in August 2013. The measure’s
summary statement identifies the requirement for the district
to provide citizens accountability and oversight and annual
audits of bond projects and expenditures. Staff has developed
a draft accountability committee charter to address this
requirement.

Membership of the committee is proposed to include six
committee members and a chair, comprising a mix of
individuals with good reputations in the community for
fairness and transparency, and people with a combination of
experience in building design; construction; construction
financing; and public contracting, budgeting and / or auditing.

The Citizens Accountability Committee Charter is now being
presented for second reading and adoption. As an advisory
committee to the board, it will be subject to Oregon public
meeting laws.

PRESENTER: Jerry Jones



Board of Directors
Re: No. 13 - Capital Construction Bond Citizens Accountability Committee
October 3, 2013

Page 2

SUPPLEMENTARY

MATERIALS: Citizen Accountability Committee Charter / Draft

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends board approval of the Citizen
Accountability Committee Charter as presented for second
reading.

REQUESTED ACTION: Move to approve the 2013-17 Citizen Accountability Committee

Charter as presented for second reading.

JJ:mkh:lc



Gresham-Barlow School District
Capital Construction Bond

Citizen Accountability Committee

EVERY STUDENT
PREPARED FOR SUCCESS

Charter

Background:

Gresham-Barlow School District (GBSD) has referred a Capital Construction Bond
Measure for voter approval on the November 5, 2013, ballot. The School Board desires
to establish a citizen accountability committee to assist in monitoring the planning and
progress of the bond program.

Committee Charge:

In response to the need for accountability regarding the District’s effective use of capital
construction bond funds, the GBSD School Board will appoint a Citizen Accountability
Committee (“Committee”) whose charge will be to monitor the planning and progress of
the bond program relative to voter-approved work scope, schedule and budget
objectives. The Superintendent has overall responsibility for performance of staff
engage in the implementation of the bond program.

The Committee will actively review the bond program, and provide advice to the Board of
Education on:

* Whether the school district bond revenues are expended only for the purposes
for which the bond was approved, and that bond revenues are not used for any
purpose prohibited by law;

* Alignment with the goals and principles of the Long Range Facility Plan;

* District standards and innovative practices for achieving lower maintenance and
construction costs while improving operating efficiency and increasing building
longevity;

* Historic preservation and school renovation opportunities compatible with the
architecture of surrounding Gresham neighborhoods;

* Potential capital partnerships for joint and shared use of GBSD facilities;

* Implementation of appropriate ways to address seismic issues;

e Compliance with ADA; and

* Communicating key information related to the bond to the School Board, public
groups, organizations, and stakeholders.

The Committee will receive and review copies of annual performance audits and
financial audits, and has the option to inspect school facilities and grounds to ensure
bond revenues are expended in compliance with state law and the ballot measure
language.

The Committee will review quarterly reports produced by the District each year the bond

proceeds are being spent in order to verify general compliance with the purposes set
forth in the capital improvement program as approved by the voters.

mkh:8/27/13 Page 1



The Committee will perform other reasonable duties requested by the School Board.

Committee Membership:

The Committee shall consist of seven members. The School Board will appoint six
committee members and a chairperson.

The Committee shall be comprised of a mix of individuals with a good reputation in the
community for fairness and transparency and a majority of the committee will be people
with a combination of experience in building design; construction; construction financing;
public contracting; budgeting, and/or auditing.

a.

The Committee members shall receive no direct or indirect compensation from
the District for their services as members of the Committee.

The Committee members may not have an active or pending contract with the
District, nor enter into a contract during their term on the Committee.

The Committee may not include any employee or official of the District, or any
vendor, contractor or consultant of the District.

A Committee member serves to advise the School Board. If a Committee
member resigns, violates the Ethics Policy contained herein (see attachment),
fails to attend two consecutive Committee meetings without reasonable excuse,
or otherwise becomes unable to serve on the Committee, the Board may declare
the position on the Committee to be vacant and appoint another qualified person
to the Committee.

Members are appointed to staggered 2 and 3-year terms and may reapply for
consideration to serve additional terms. A member may not serve more than six
consecutive years.

Committee Operations:

The charge to the Committee does not include:

a.

b.

Approval of construction contracts;

Approval of construction change orders;
Appropriation of construction funds;

Handling of legal matters;

Approval of construction plans and schedules;
Approval of the sale of bonds;

Priorities and order of construction for the bond projects;

mkh:8/27/13 Page 2



Selection of architects, engineers, construction managers, project managers, and
such other professional service firms;

The approval of the design for any project;

The selection of independent audit firm(s), performance audit consultants and
such other consultants as are necessary to support the performance of the Bond
Program,;

Setting or approving schedules of design and construction activities; or

Activities, roles or responsibilities that have been designated by the

Superintendent or his designee to staff or consultants, or any policy-making
responsibilities.

Committee Meetings:

a.

The Committee will meet quarterly or as requested by the Superintendent,
District staff or the Committee chair.

Committee meetings are advisory and not related to formal decision-making by
the GBSD School Board. Committee meetings shall include opportunity for
public comments.

The Chief Financial Officer will provide support and staffing to the Committee.

GBSD staff will provide necessary technical and administrative assistance as
follows:
1. A meeting room, including any necessary audio/visual equipment;

2. Preparation and copies of any documentary meeting materials, such as
agendas and reports; and distribution of those materials to the committee
in a timely manner.

3. Provision of reports covering the School Bond Program.

4. Preparation of Committee meeting minutes and posting for public viewing
and use on the GBSD web site.

5. GBSD staff will attend Committee meetings in order to report on the
status of capital improvement projects, to respond to questions, and to
receive advice and counsel on the overall bond program or any of its
component parts. GBSD project consultants may attend Committee
meetings at the discretion of GBSD staff.

mkh:8/27/13 Page 3



Attachment

Gresham-Barlow School District
Capital Construction Bond Citizen Accountability Committee:
Ethics Considerations

An ethics policy provides general guidelines for Committee members to follow in carrying
out their roles. Not all ethical issues that Committee members face are covered in this
Policy. However, this Policy captures some of the critical areas that help define ethical
and professional conduct for Committee members. Committee members are expected
to strictly adhere to the provisions of this Ethics Policy.

Policy:

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. A Committee member shall not make or influence a District
decision related to:
1. any contract funded by bond proceeds; or
2. any construction project which will benefit the Committee member’s outside
employment, business, or provide a financial benefit to a family member, such as
a spouse, child, parent or sibling.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT. A Committee member shall not use his or her authority over
a particular matter to negotiate future employment with any person or organization that
relates to:
1. any contract funded by bond proceeds; or
2. any construction project. A Committee member shall not make or influence a
District decision related to any construction project involving the interest of a
person with whom the member has an agreement concerning current or future
employment, or remuneration of any kind.

For a period of one (1) year after leaving the Committee, a former Committee member
may not represent any person or organization for compensation in connection with any
matter pending before the District that, as a Committee member, he or she participated
in personally and substantially. Specifically, for a period of one (1) year after leaving the
Committee, a former Committee member and the companies and businesses for which
the member works shall be prohibited from contracting with the District with respect to:

1. bidding or proposing to provide services on projects funded by the bond

proceeds; and/or
2. any construction project funded by the District.

COMMITMENT TO UPHOLD LAW. A Committee member shall uphold the federal and
Oregon Constitutions, the law and regulations of the United States and the State of
Oregon, and the policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the Gresham-Barlow
School District.

COMMITMENT TO THE PUBLIC. A Committee member shall place the interests of the
public above any personal or business interest of the member.

mkh:8/27/13 Page 4



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT
1331 NW Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3825

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jim Schlachter
Anita Harris
DATE: October 3, 2013
RE: No. 14 - Dual Language / Two-Way Bilingual Grant
EXPLANATION: This topic was reviewed as a first reading at the September 26,

2013, board work session with the following explanation:

Oregon Department of Education has issued a Request for
Proposal (RFP) for the Dual Language/Two-Way Bilingual
Grant. This grant is intended to support Oregon school
districts, consortia of school districts or charter schools
(grantees) to design, implement and improve Dual-
Language/Two-Way bilingual programs in Oregon. These
programs assist students in becoming academically proficient
in two languages.

The Dual Language/Two-Way Bilingual Grant will include
support from a selected consultant. There are three phases
for this grant, which include a planning phase,
implementation phase, and program evaluation phase.

Based on the availability of state resources, this three-year
grant program begins in 2013, and ends in 2016. Awards will
be issued to successful applicants on an annual basis. ODE
and a third party consultant will annually review progress
reports and performance data to determine continued
program funding.

Approximately $120,000 will be available in this application
period. Grants will be level funded 25% in year one, 50% in year
two, and 25% in year three. In years four and five, programs are
expected to maintain service levels equivalent to those provided
in the first three years. Grantees must assert their intent to
continue these programs once the grant funding is expended



Board of Directors

Re: No. 14 - Dual Language/ Two-Way Bilingual Grant

October 3, 2013
Page 2

PRESENTER:

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION:

REQUESTED ACTION:

AH:sce:lc

and must secure from their district board chair,
superintendent and building principal assurances that the
Dual Language Bilingual program will continue after the
grant period ends.

Gresham-Barlow currently has a committee completing an
application for this grant.

Anita Harris

Policy DD, Funding, Proposals and Applications

Pursuant to board policy, DD, Funding Proposals and
Applications, board action is required to approve grant
applications. For this reason, this material is being presented for
second reading and adoption this evening.

Move to approve submission of the three-year Dual
Language/Two-Way Bilingual Grant application that represents
$120,000 in planning and implementation funds as presented.



Code: DD
Adopted: 7/11/94
Gresham-Barlow SD 10 Readopted: 5/2/02
Orig. Code(s): DD

Funding Proposals and Applications

The Board has as its primary mission the education of district students according to adopted goals and
priorities. To this end all legal and worthwhile financial resources will be pursued.

Grants-in-aid may become available from either the federal or state government. The district will pursue
those grants that will assist the district in meeting the adopted goals and priorities of the current
instructional program or will create facilities, purchase equipment or otherwise assist in implementing such
programs as the Board has previously considered/approved.

The Board directs that each presentation regarding the pursuit of outside funding include the obligations,
expectations or encumbrances which will exist when the grant or other outside funding ceases.

The Board will consider the above criteria as it acts upon requests for grants, will expect a
recommendation from the superintendent and a full explanation of all aspects of the proposal before

approving any application.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):
ORS 294.100

ORS 294.305 - 294.565
ORS 332.075

1-1


http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-294
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-294
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332

	00 00 Cover
	00 01 Agenda
	02 00 School District Financial Summary
	02 01 School District Financial Summary
	Board - Report 2013-14 - Oct

	03 00 Personnel
	04 00 Out-of-State Travel
	05 00 Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
	05 01 Mutual Aid Omnibus Agreement
	06 00 Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review
	06 01 Annual Restraint and Seclusion Review
	07 00 Spelling Contest Winner Cheyenne Howatt
	08 00 Yes Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Update.docx
	09 00 DAC Report
	10 00 Enrollent and Class Size Report
	10 01 Enrollent and Class Size Report
	Sheet 1
	Elementary.xls
	Wider sheet
	Middle School
	MS Core
	BHS
	GHS
	STHS

	11 00 Gresham Arthur Academy Report to the Board
	11 01 Gresham Arthur Academy Report to the Board
	Table of Contents

	Introduction

	1.0 Mission-Specific Goals/Admissions & Enrollment 
	2.0 Overall Student Success 

	3.0 Longitudinal Analysis of Student Achievement 

	4.0 Federal Accountability 

	5.0 State Accountability 

	6.0 Fiscal Performance & Accountability 

	7.0 Governance 

	Conclusion &  Recommendations 

	Summary of Findings 

	Appendix A: Evaluation Team Biographies 

	Appendix B: Evaluation Rubric 


	12 00 Acceptance of a Donation Daimler
	13 00 Capital Construction Bond Citizens Accountbility Committee
	13 01 Capital Construction Bond Citizens Accountbility Committee
	14 00 Dual Language Two-Way Bilingual Program Grant
	14 01 Dual Language Two-Way Bilingual Program Grant



